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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors
Huntingdon Area School District
2400 Cassady Avenue, Suite 2
Huntingdon, Pennsylvania 16652

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities , the businesstype activities, each major fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Huntingdon Area
Schoo l District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the
Contents .
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financia l statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design , implementation , and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement , whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements . The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances , but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's interna l control. According ly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluat ing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management , as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements .
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.
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O pinion s
In our opinion , the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financia l position of the governmental activities , the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of th e Huntingdon Area School District, as of
June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and, wher e applicable, cash flows
th ereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles genera lly accepted in the
United States of Amer ica .

Ot her Matters
Requir ed Supp lem entary In fo rm ation
Acco unting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amer ica require that the
management's discussion and analysis , budgetary comparison information, and the defined benefit
postemployment healthca re plan's schedule of funding progress, on pages 3 thro ugh 12, 56 through
58, and 61 through 63 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standa rds Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, econo mic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited proced ures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America , which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with managemen t's responses to our inquiries, the basic financia l statements, and other
knowledge we obtai ned during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
w ith sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provid e any assurance.
Other Inform atio n
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comp rise the Huntingdon Area School Distri ct's basic financial statements. The schedule
of expenditure s of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as requi red by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circ ular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and NonProfit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements .
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statemen ts. Such information has been subj ected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures , including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
th e basic financial statemen ts or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion , the schedule of expe nditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financi al statements as a who le.
Ot her Report ing Req uired by Go vernmen t Aud iting Sta ndards
In accordance with Gove rnment Audit ing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 10, 2015 on our consideration of the Huntingdon Area School District's internal control over
fi nancial reporting and on our te sts of its compliance with certai n provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts , and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing , and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financia l reporting or on compliance .
T hat report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Huntingdon Area School District's internal control over fina ncial reporting
and compliance.

A lt oona, Pennsylvania
Novembe r 10, 2015
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Huntingdon Area School District
Management Discussion and Ana lysis
for the Fiscal Year E nded June 30, 2015

The Management, Discuss ion, and Analysis (MD &A) of the Hun tin gdon A rea Schoo l Distr ict provides a reader
friendly insight into the financi al condition and the financial performance of the School District for the fiscal
yea r ended June 30, 20 15. This MD&A looks at the District ' s fin anc ia l performance on a distr ict-wide bas is as
well as the major funds. Readers should revi ew th e financi al statements to augment their understanding o f the
District's financial performance.

Background
The Ma nagement Disc uss ion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the reporti ng model adopted by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASS) in their State ment No. 34 Basic Financial Statements - and
Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Loca l Governments issued Jun e 1999. Certain
comparat ive infor mation betw een the current year and the prio r year is required to be presented.
Previou s stan dards (pre GA SB 34) required modified accrual (no receivables/accruals beyond 60 days), no
capital asse t depr eciation and no repo rts of com bined net position . GASB 34 requires fixed asset accou nting,
prop erly comb ining of mu ltipl e fund s and the realization of the depreciation expense as part of the Statement of
Net Position and Statement of Activiti es.

Var ious sta tements required under GASB 34 are:
•

Statement of Net Pos ition

•

Stateme nt of Activ ities

•

Balance Sheet of Gov ernmental Funds

•

Reconciliation of the Governme nta l Fund Balance Shee t to the Statement of Net Position

•

Statement of Revenues, Expend itures, and Changes in Fu nd Ba lances

•

Reconciliation of Govemmental Fund Stateme nt of Revenues, Expend itures and Changes in Fund
Balance to the Statement of Activities

•

State ment of Revenu es, Expenditures and Cha nges in Fund equity - Budget vs. Actual - Genera l Fund
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Overview of the Financial Statements
This section of the comprehensive annua l financial report consists of three parts - management' s discussion and
analysis, basic financial statements (district-wide and fund statements) including notes to the financial
statements, and other required supplementary information.
The basic financial statements consist of two kinds of statements that present different views of the district 's
financial activities.
•

Entity-w ide Stateme nts:
o The statement of net position and statement of activ ities provide infonnation on a district-wide
basis. The statements present an aggregate view of the district' s finances. District-wide
stateme nts conta in usefu l long-tenn information as well as information for the j ust-completed
fiscal year.

•

Fund Statements:
o The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
district. Fund statements generally report operations in more detail than the district-wi de
statements.

•

The notes to the financial statements provide further explanation of some of the information in the
statements and additiona l disclosures so statement users have a complete picture of the district's
financial activities and position.

•

Required supplementary informati on further explains and supports the financial statements by including
a comparison of the district' s budget data for the year.
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The major features of the di strict' s financial statements , incl ud ing the po rti on o f the activ iti e s repo rted and the
ty p e of informatio n contained is s ho w n in th e fo llowing table.

Scope

Required fina ncial
statements

Figure A·2
Major Features of Huntingdon Are a Sc hool District's
Entitv-Wide and Fund Financial Statemen ts
Fund State ments
Enti tyPro nrietarv Funds
wide Statements
Governm ental Funds
Entire District
The activ ities of the
Activities th e
(except fiduci ary
District th at are not
Distr ict opera tes
funds)
proprietary or
sim ilar to private
fiduciary, suc h as
bus iness - Food
education ,
Services
administration and
communitv services
Statement of net
Balance Sheet
Statement of net
Stateme nt of
po sition
position,
Statement of
revenues,
State ment of
activities
expend itures, and
revenues,
changes in fund
ex penses and
balance
changes in net
position
Statement of cash

Fiduciarv Funds
Instances in whi ch
th e District is the
trus tee or agent to
someone else's
resources Acti vity Funds
State ment of
fidu ciary net
position,
Statement o f
changes in fiduciary
net po sition

floW>
Acc ount ing basis
and meas urement
focus
Type of
asset/liability
inform ation

Type of in flowoutflow
in formation

A ccrual
accounting and
economic
resources focu s
All assets and
liabil ities, both
financia l and
cap ita l, and
short-term and
long-term
All revenues an d
expenses during
year, regardle ss
of when cas h is
received or paid

Modified accrual
accounti ng and
current finan cial
resources focus
Onl y asse ts expected
to be used and
liabilities that come
due during the year
or so on thereafter; no
capit al assets
incl uded
Revenu es for which
cas h is re ceived
during or soon after
the end of th e year ;
expenditur es when
goods or services
hav e bee n received
and paym ent is due
during the year or
soo n ther eafter
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Ac crua l
accounting an d
economic
resources focus
All assets and
liabilities, both
finan cial an d
ca pital, and shortterm and longterm
All revenues and
expenses during
year , regardless of
whe n cash is
rec eived or p aid

Acc rual account ing
and ec onomic
resources focus
All asse ts and
lia bilities, both
short-term and longterm

A ll reve nues and
expenses during
year, regardless of
when cash is
rece ived or pa id

Entity- Wide Statements
The entity-w ide statements rep ort inform ation about the district as a who le using acco unting metho ds similar to
those used by private-sector companies. The two entity-w ide statements report the district 's net position and
how they have changed. Net position , the d ifference between the district' s assets and liabilities, is one way to
meas ure the district' s overall financia l position.
•

Increases or decreases in the d istrict's net position is one indicator of whet her its financial position is
improving or deteriorating, respective ly.

•

To assess the overa ll financial cond ition of the d istrict add itional non-fina ncial factors, such as changes
in the district's property tax base and the condition of school buildings and other facilities, should be
considered.

In the entity-w ide financial stateme nts, the district's activities are d ivided into two categories:
•

Go vernmenta l activities - Most of the district' s basic services are included here, such as regular and
special education, transportation, support services, community programs and administration. Property
taxes and state formula aid finance most of these activities .

•

Business-type act ivities - The district charges fees and received federal and state re imbursements to
cove r the costs of its food service operatio n. Th e financial activities of this program are repo rted as a
busi ness-type activ ity.

Financia l High lights - Entity-Wid e Statements
Th e D istrict 's financial status, as reflected in total net position , decreased by ($33,825,938) for the current fiscal
period . Ne t position of governmental activitie s dec reased ($33,870,321) whi le business-type act ivities increased
$44,383. The decrease in net position resulted mainly as a function of GAS B 68 which was implemented by the
d istrict in 20 1 4 ~ 15. Th is Statement establishes standards for measuring and recogn izing liabilities, deferred
out flow s of resources, and de ferred inflow s of resources, and expense/expenditu res. For defi ned benefit
pensions, th is Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that shou ld be used to proj ect benefit payments,
discount projected benefit payments to the ir actua rial present value, and att ribute that prese nt value to per iods of
em ployee service. A restatement to reco rd the effects of the new report ing guidance decreased beginning net
positio n by ($3 1,976,000).
Total reven ues were $26,919,224 ; program revenues accounte d for $7, 169,720 or 26.63% and general revenues
accounted for $19 ,749,504 or 73.37% of total revenues.
Busine ss-ty pe act ivities had a net increase in cap ital assets of $18,8 84 as a result of acquisition of new
equi pment outpaci ng depreciation and dis posal of assets. The governmental activiti es had a net decrease of
($ 1,540,184) as a result of depreciation outpaci ng acquisition of new equipment.
The d istr ict repaid $1,125 ,000 of long-term debt. The d istrict had no short-term debt. As of 6/30/20 15 the
d istrict had tota llong-tenn debt of $32,765 ,000 . The district refi nanced the fo llowing issues:
•

Series o r 20 14 - Advance Re funded General Ob ligat ion Bonds, Series 2010 (Principal $8,300,000)
o New Principal $8,685,000 - Net change in principa l 0[ $38 5,000
o Gross Savi ngs $43 1,375 - Net Savings $336 ,734

•

Series 0[2015· Advance Refu nded General Ob ligation Bonds, Series 20 11 (Principal - $9,3 15,000)
o New Principal $10,000,000 - Net Change in principal 0[$685,000
o Gross Saving s $1,3 14,672 · Net Savings $ 1,161,132
" Ple ase Not e the Series of20 15 was a part ial adva nce refunding of tile Series of20 II , with $645,000 of
the 2011 remained outstanding .

-6-

In governme ntal activities, the district had a total of$25,850,600 of expenses and $27,744,921 of revenues that
resulted in a $ 1,894 ,321 decrease In net position. Opera ting grants & contributions provided $6,135,082
(23. 73%), grants, subside s and contributions $8,489,706 (32.84 %); property and othertaxes 11,092,724
(42.9 1%), and other revenues accounted for 133,088 (.52%).
In governmental activities, general tax revenues are primarily compr ised of property taxes that accounted for
$8,003,167 or 72. 15%, while all other taxes accounted for $3,089,557 or 27.85%.
The school food servic e progra m, the district's only business-type act ivity, had a total $1,024,24 1 of expe nses,
of which $280,282 was financed by charges for services, $638,342 with subsidies and $150,000 from general
fund transfers resulting in a $44,383 increase to net position .

Fund Financial Statement s
The fund financ ial statements provide more detailed informat ion about the district's funds, focusing on its most
significant or "major" funds - not the distr ict as a whole. Funds are acco unting devices the district uses to keep
track of sources of funding and spending on particular programs and to demonstrate complia nce with vario us
regu latory requirements.
•

Some funds are required by state law and by bond covenants.

•

The district esta blishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (like repaying
its long-term deb t) or to show that it is properly using certain revenues (like capita l project funds).

The District has three kinds of fund s:
•

Governmental funds - Most of the district's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
generally focus on ( I) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in
and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are ava ilable for funding future basic serv ices.
Consequently, the government fund s statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps determin e
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
district's programs. Gove rnm ental fund informatio n does not report on long-term commitments as is
reported on the district-wide statements. Therefore an exp lanation of the differences between the
governmental funds and the district-wide statements is included as a separate statement.

•

Proprietary funds - The food service fund, and activity for which the district charges a fee and for which
revenues are expected to cover all expenses is reported as a proprietary fund. Proprietary funds are
reported in the same way as the district-wide statements.

•

Fiduciary funds - The district serves as a trustee, or fiduciary, for student organizations. The assets of
these organ izations belong to the organization, and not the district. The district is responsible for
ensuring that the asse ts reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and only by
those whom the assets belong. The se activities are excluded from the district-wide financia l statements
because the distri ct cannot use these assets to finance its operations .
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Financial Highlights - Fund Financial Statements
The general fund end ing unass igned fund balance 0[$1 ,614,359 equates to 6.3% of the original operating
budget 0 £$25,563,776. This is in line with Board Policy 620 which directs the schoo l district to strive to
mainta in an unass igned gener al fund balance of not less than six percent (6%) and not more than eight perce nt
(8%) of the budgeted expenditures for the fiscal year.
•

Total ge nera l fund reve nues were $796,975 or 3.16% more than bud geted.
o

•

Th e majority o f the variance in revenues resulted from variance s in state subs idies, notabl y
Rental & Sinkin g Fund payments and the Ready to Learn Block Grant .

Total genera l fund expenses were $97 6, 145 or 3.74% less th an budgeted .

The net change in fund balance of all govern mental funds was $453,435. This is comprised of the results from
general operations of the General Fun d Account $506,983; Capital Reserve (#32) Account ($53,548) .
The General Fu nd had an ending fund balance of $5,25 1,98 8 of which $1,614,359 is unassign ed. Th is includes
athleti c activitie s previously re ported separately.
A portion of the D istrict's Fun d Balance has been identified as assigned throug h
Board Action as fo llows:
1,303,579

Futu re Employee Benefit Costs
Cap ita l Projects

1,289 ,370
844,680

Specia l Ed and Charter School Costs
Curr iculumffec hnology

200,000
$3,637 ,629

The Cap ita l Reserve fund had an end ing fund ba lance of $3 ,239 ,487. This entire amo unt is comm itted to debt
service payme nts an d capital repairs or improvements as defined in Munic ipal Code Section 1431.
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Government-wide Financial Ana lysis
Net pos itio n may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The district's
liabilities exceeded assets by ($ 19,412,598) as of June 30, 20 15 du e ma inly to the enactment ofGASB 68.

Capital assets of $38,32 1,681 accounted for 76.0% of total assets. The District uses capital assets to provide
serv ices; consequently, these assets are not available for future spend ing. Alt hough the District' s $5,975,983
investment in its cap ital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay debt must be provided from other sources, since the cap ital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities.
Table 1 summarizes the assets, liabilities, and net position of the District at June 30, 20 15.

Ta ble 1
Net P osition - lE ntitv-W ide
As of June 30, 2015

As of June 30 , 2014
Govrrnmenlal

Business.
Ty pe

Activiliu

AClivlliu

BUJ i ll~SS-

G overn mrn llli

Type

Activitiu

Actlvili es

Tota l

Total

Assets
Current & Other As set s

$11,642,683

Capita l A ss ets

$38.290,844

T o ta l Assets

$49933 527

W.~

$3,192,122

1ll

$3.192.122

lliOWl

$4.323,125

$64,853

$4,387,978

$3,841,827

$663 07, 14 1

5J) 040,364

S1M~ I 12

SJ,6.88b.!21

SU77.00Q

1ll

1ll

12

Deferr ed O u tfl ows of
Re sources

$503,035

=

$12,1 45,718

$10,807,569

$478,449

$11,286,018

U.~ .Ul..MH

U.2.UU)1.!l

susa

1l2.~11

~.5Q,467.J2'.!

!iJl..~

~20Am

ru.m.22:1

1ll

lli2.lli

$52,721

$3,894,548

Lia bilities
C urren t Liabilities

=

=
=

Long-Te rm Liabili ties

1§{>,142.8lH

T otal Liab ilities

570 473 OO'J

De ferr ed In flows of
Re so urce s

$2..37U )()Q

1ll

$5,945,146

$30,837

15,975 ,983

$7,400,583

$11,953

$7,412,536

$2,939,487

$0

$2,939,487

$3,293,035

$0

$3,293,035

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

13.452,343

1lli.ill

U701,7h9

762

(St9 412 598}

' 4~

""379

" 44 1J.J40

=

1JUJQ.'-'"

$31 105 214

Net P o s it io n:
In ve sted in Capital Assets
Net o f Re lated Debt
Restricted for Capital
Projects
O ther Restrictions
Unrestricted
T ot a l Net Posit io n

($28,608,9931
' 'l:IQ

7"4 160\

=

t] 11

t$21l.328.0681
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Government Activities
The Stat ement of A ct ivities shows the cost o f program se rvices , re venue s from c ha rges for those services and
grants that directl y offset those serv ices. T he table be low refl ect s the cost of program serv ices and the net cost
of those se rv ices after tak in g into account the program reve nues for the gov e rnme nta l act ivities. G eneral
re venues (cons ist pr imarily of ta x reve nues ) su pport the net cost of the District ' s se rvic es. T able 2 summarizes
the c hanges in Net Positi on fo r the ye ar e nd ed J un e 30, 201 5.
T a ble 2
C ha n ges in Ne t Position
For tbe Year Ended June 30

fEntitv-W idel
20 15

2014

Gon rnmt nla l

Covern meetal

Activitie5

Program Revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants & Contributions
Capita l Grants & Contributions
Ge neral Revenu es:
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Grants, Subsidies & Contrib utions
Investment earnings
Other Revenue
Tot al Revenue s:
Progra m Expenses:
Instruction
Instructional Student Support
Administrative Suppo rt
Operation and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Student Activities
Community Services
Interest on Long-Tenn Debt
Depreciation Expense
Food Service
Refund of Prior Yr. Receipts

Busln ess-T ......

$280,282

To lal

$116.014
$6,135,082

$638,342

$396,296
$6,773,424

SO

SO

SO

$8,003,167

SO

53,089,557

SO

58,489,706
$6,122

SO
SO

$8,003,167
$3,089,557
$8,489,706
$6,122

lliO.Olll!

U®.2ll

=

W JliQ.60Q

S-U&~

$15,875,959
$2,448,252
$2,076,632

SO

$2,575,506
$1,142,630

$0

S53I ,280

SO

$0

SO

SO
SO

SI,594,096
S464,900
$0

SO

Busl ness-T......

AClivitiu

$61,966
$5,504,444
$41,444

$656,922

$370.)61
$6,161.)66

SO

$41,444

$8,046,056

SO

$2,959,105
$8,459,7 11

SO

$5,106

SO

$8,046,056
52,959, 105
$8,459,7 11
$5,106

$308 ,395

SO

!lli.2;2

lliQJlOO

=

ill 32J 781

$1.1 15311

$15,875,959
$2,448,252

$14,93 1,407
$2,142,779
$1,896,041
$2,2R6,738
$2,073,7 16

SO

$2,076.632
$2,575,506
$2, 142,630
$531,280

SO
SO
$0

SO

$448,966

SO

SO

SO

$1,219,460

SO

$0

SO
$1,594,096
$464,900

$464,900

$1,024,241

$1,024,241

SO

SO
$1,039,729

SO

TOlal

=

IJWlli
S26.431.028

$14,931,407
$2,142,779
SI,896,04 1
$2,286,738
$2,073,716
$448,966
SO
$1,219,460
$464,900

$1,039,729

1ll.1i:M
S27.144.92 1

III

ll.lM<

Total Expenses

S1,02<l.24 1

U8,7h9, 162

S25,511 624

SI,039,n9

Hl.ill
526,55 1,353

lncreasetd ecreese) in Net Position

($I,894,32 I)

$44,383

($1,849,938)

($189,84])

$75,588

(SI14,255)

$14,413,340
lliLll'l
10 ($3 1,976,000)
(SI7,562.66Ql
R~

$14335,804

1=

514,527595

SH 145 961

I"HZ2

SL4 ·: !ll.J40

Beginn ing Net Positi on
Prior Period Adjustment

Sl4,145%1
(S3I,976,OOO)

Beginning Net Position - Restated

lS17,830.om

Ending Net Position

'1'0 ". '601

-10 -

lJJ I ' "

" ' 0 '" '2"

III

Factors Bearing on the District' s Future
Currently known c ircumst ances that will impa ct the district finan cial status in the future are:
o

Th e labor agreement with the Hunt ingdon A rea Education As sociation (representing teachers) was
reached covering the per iod 20 15- 16 through 201 7- 18. Average increase ove r the three yea r
contract is 3.38%.

Fiscal Yea r
20 15-16
20 16- 17
2017 -18

Average Increase
Per Tea cher
$2, 129
$1,389
$ 1, 121

%
4.80
3.00
2.3 5

Total
Increase
340 ,572
227,7 60
183,764

The d istrict also nego tiated a Qu alified High Deductib le Health Pla n (QHD P) for effective w ith the
20 16- 17 fiscal year. Sav ing s are projected to be 4.3% over 2015- 16 rates in fiscal year 20 16-17.
o

Th e collective barga ining agreements fo r SElU and llAESPA su ppo rt staff both exp ire on June 30,
20 16. Negotiations are scheduled to sta rt in January 2016.

o

The district is mandated to participate in th e Pennsylvan ia Public Schoo l Emp loyees Retirement
Sys tem. O n avera ge, for 20 14-15 , the d istrict rece ived 57.5% state subsidy. T he following reflects
th e rate and rate changes over the past four years :

201 1-2012
20 12-20 IJ
20IJ -20 14
20 14-20 15

% Rate
Chan ge
53.4%
42.9%
37. 0%
26 .4%

Rat e
8.65%
12 .36%
16 .93%
21. 40%

Act 120 of20 10 made the fo llowing changes to the pension plan :
I . Ma intains the defi ned bene fit plan but implemented a shared risk ele ment for all new
employees starting Ju ly 1,20 11 and after.
2. Modified the act uarial ca lculation by exte nding th e ca lculation of unfunded accrued
liability includ ing re-am ortizing the unfunded accrue d liab ilities over 24 years using a
level-percentage of pay .
3. Limited the increase in the em ployer con tribut ion rate thus providing the maxi mum rate of
25 .84% in 2015- 16 ; 29 .69% in 20 16-17 ; and 30. 62% in 2017-1 8.
o

T he d istrict was previously a member of the Hunt ingdon County Schools Insurance Trust (IlCSlT) .
On Ju ly 1, 2015 the d istrict became a mem ber of the T uscarora Intermediate Unit Cap ital Insurance
T rust (TIUCIT) for th e purpose of prov id ing health insurance to emp loyees in accordance with
labor ag reements. T he district received a settlement of funds on December 3 1, 20 15 from the
HCS IT of $6 14,5 4 1.53 wh ich will be offset by a buy-in to th e TruCIT of 60 days of esti mated
claims wh ich is estimated to be $436,000. Th e change to change to TIUCIT resulted in 6% prem ium
savings for the 201 5-16 fisca l year.
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Website Documents
The district's website huntsd.org provides extensive access for board meeting agendas , minutes and
financial transactions updated for each meeting in addition to employment contracts, annual budgets,
annual financial reports and audit reports.

Contacting the District Financial Management
The financi al report is designed to prov ide OUf citizens, taxpayers, parent s, student, sta ff, investors and cred itors
with a general overview o f the Distric t's finan ces and to show the Board ' s accountab ility for the money it
receives. If you have questions about th is report or wish to request addi tional financial info rmation, please
contact:
Faith M. Swanson, PRSBO
Bu siness Ma nager/Board Treasurer
Huntingdon Area Schoo l District
2400 Cassady Avenue, Suite 2
Hunt ingdon, PA 16652
Phone: (814) 64 1-2120
Emai l: rswanson @huntsd.org
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

Gove rn mental
Ac tivities
Curre nt Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Taxes Receivable, Net
Internal Balances
Due from Other Governments
Other Receivables
Inventories
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Land
Buildings and Improvements, Net of Depreciation
Fixtures and Equipment, Net of Depreci ation

Business-Typ e
Act iv ities

$10,081 ,785
671,4 13
7,766)
853,479
22,898
20,874

$320 ,752
0
7,766
120,821
0
53,696

$10,402,537
671,413
0
974,300
22,898
74,570

$11,642 ,683

$503 ,035

$12,145,718

$

196,747
35,305,44 0
2,788 ,657

0
0
30,837

$

$

196,747
35,305,440
2,819.494

Total Noncurrent Assets

$38 ,290,844

s 30,837

$38,321,681

Total Assets

$49 ,933 ,527

$533 ,872

$50,46 7,399

s

s_ _00

S

$ 3,192,122

$

$ 3,192,122

711 ,773
1,143,026
953,283
192,043
0
0
1,323,000

s

s

$ 4,323,125

$ 64,853

s 4 ,387,978

$31,442 ,000
33,248 ,000
1,070,886
368,998

$

0
0
14,090
143,167

$31,442,000
33,248 ,000
1,084,976
532,165

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

$66, 149,884

$157 ,257

$66,307,141

T otal Liabilities

$70,473,009

$222 ,110

$70,695 ,119

Deferred Infl ow s of Reso urces
Deferred Resources Related to Pensions

$ 2,377,000

$

$ 2,377,000

Net Pos ition
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Capital Projects
Unrestricted

$ 5,945,146
2,939,48 7
( 28,608,993)

s 30,837
0
280,925

$ 5,975,983
2,939,487
( 28,328 ,068)

($19,724,360)

$311,762

($19,412,598)

Deferred Outflo ws of Resources
Deferred Charge on Refunding
Deferred Resources Related to Pensions
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

419,302
2,n2,820

0

419 ,302
2,n2,820

Liabilities
Current Li ab ili ti es
Accounts Payable
Acc rued Salaries and Benefits
Payroll Deductions and W ithholdings
Accrued Interest
Othe r Current Liabilities
Deferred Revenue
Bonds Payable

$

Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Bonds Payab le
Net Pension Liability
Long-Term Portion of Compensated Absences
Other Postemployment Benefits

Total Net Position

2,615
51,062
0
0
0
11,176
__
0

0

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Auditor's Report
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714,388
1,194,088
953,283
192,043
0
11,176
1,323,000

HUNTINGDO N AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATE MENT OF ACT IVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Ellpansos

Funetions/Progra ms
Gove rnme nta l A cti vities
Instruct i on
Regu lar lnstrucl ion
Speci al Inslrudion
Vocational Instruction
Other Instructional Programs

$10,034,620
4,656 ,553
956 ,105
226,68 1
$15,875,959

Total Instruct ional Serv ices

S uppo rt Services
$

Pupil Se rvices
Instructional Services
Adm inistration
Pupi l Health
Business Services
Operation of Plant and Maintenance Services
Studen t Transp ortation
Central

936.621
1,190,658
1,415,240
320,913
656,319
2,575,506
2, 142,630
5,073

$ 9,243,020

t oter Support Services
Nonin str\lcllona l Serv ic es
Studen t Activities
Commu nity Services
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Unalloca ted Re pairs
Unalloca ted Depre cialion
Rerund of Prior Ye ar Receipts

$

531.280

o
o

1,594,096
464, 900
35,666

Total Noninstructional Services

$ 2,625,942

Total Governmental Activiti es

$27,744,921

Bu sines s _TY!!9 A ctiv itie s
Food Services

S 1,024,241
$28,769,162

Total Primary Gover nment

Gllne ra l Rev enues
Taxes:
Property Taxes . l evied for Genera l Purp oses

otter t axes
Grants, Subsidies , and ccmntcno ns No! Restricted
Investm enl Earnings
Misce llaneo us Inco me
Transfers In (Oul )
Gain on Sa le of Fi>(ed Assets
Total Ge nera l Revenues, Tra nsfers, and Speciai llems

Ghange In Net l-'osition

Net Pos lli o n - Beginn ing
Prior Period Adjustment
Nil! Po sition . Beginning (Re stated)

Net Pos ill on - End ing

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Auditor's Report
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCH OOL DISTRI CT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Net (Ellp en ses) Reven ues and
C han gos In Not Pos it io n

Prog raIU Rev en uos

Cha rge s for
~

$ 37 ,785

0
0
_ _0

Operati n g

Ca p it al

Grants a nd

Grants and
Co ntr ibu tIons

Cont ri but i ons

$1,583.527
2,163,183
19 ,294

0
0
0

58,292

-----'l

$ 37 ,785

$3,824,296

•

•

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

$ 78,229

0
0
0

75,484
64,437
117 ,659

•
•

61,515
32,734
115.531
1,42 4,920

510

-----'l

•

•

$1,892,790

•

0

-----'l

33,650
0
384,346
0
0
0

$ 78,229

•

$116,014

$6,135,082

$260,262

•

$396,296

$6,773,424

417,996

638,342

_

•
•
_

•
•
•
•

Gov ernmenta l

Busines s -Typ e

ActivIties

Activit ies

(S 8,4 13.308)
2,493 ,370)
936,811)

(

(
(

0

170 389)

($12,013,878)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
_ 0

"

861 ,137)

1.126. 221)
1,297,581)

259.458)

623.585 )
2,459,975)
7 17,710)
4 563}
($ 7,350, 230)

0
0
0
0
0
0
_ 0

"

419,401)

0
1,209,750)
0
464,900)
35,666)

•
_

•
•

0
0
0
_ 0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
_ _0

•
•
_

0
0
0
0
0
0
_ 0

($ 8,413,308)
( 2,493 ,3101

(

936.8 11)
110,389)

I

($12,013.678)

"
I
(
(

I
I
I

861,137)

1.126,221)
1,297,581)
259,456 )
623,585 )
2,459.975)
717,710)
4,563)

(

($ 7.350,230)

"

419,401)

0
1,209,750)
0
464,900)
35666)

0

($ 2,129,717)

•

0

($ 2,129,717)

0

($21,493,625)

•

0

($21,493,625)

0

•

0

($105,617)

0

($21,493,625)

($105,617)

$ 8,003 ,167
3,089,557
8,489,706
6,122
160,952
150,000)

•

105,617)

($21,599,442)

0

-----'l

$ 8,003,167
3,089.557
8,489,706
6,122
160,952
0
0

$19,599,504

$150,000

$19,749,504

($ 1,894 ,321)

$ 44,383

($ t,l:14!:l.9;,a)

$14,145,961

$267,379

$14,413,340

0
0
0
0
0
150,000

_ 0

( 31,976,000)

($17,830,039)

$267,379

($17,562,600)

($19,724,3 60)

$3 11,762

($19,412,598)

( 31,976000)

_

See Accompanying Notes and Ind epend ent Aud itor's Report
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

General

Reserve

Total
Governmental
Funds

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Taxes Receivable, Net
Due from Other Governments
Inventory
Other Receivables

$6,842,298
713,913
853,479
20,874
22,898

$3,239,487
0
0
0
0

$ 10,081,785
713,913
853,479
20,874
22,898

TOTAL ASSETS

$8,453,462

$3,239,487

$11,692,949

$

7,766
711,773
1,143,026
953,283
0

s

0
0
0
0
0

$

$2,815,848

$

0

$ 2,815,848

$ 385,626

$

0

$

385,526

$

$

0
304,930
2,934,557

$

0
3,942,559
4,548,916

Capital
ASSETS

LIA BILIT IES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUNO BALAN CES
Liabilities

Interfund Payab les
Acco unts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Other Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Res ources
Unavailable Reve nue - Property Taxes

7,766
711,773
1,143,026
953,283
0

Fund Balances

Restricted Fund Balance
Assigned Fund Balances
Unassigned Fund Balance
Total Fund Balances
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES , AND FUND BALANCES

0
3,637,629
1,614,359

$5,251,988

$3,239,487

$ 8,491,475

$8,453,462

$3,239,487

$11,692,949

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Auditor's Report
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Y EA R ENDED JUNE 30 , 2015

$ 6,491,475

Tota l Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different
because :
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and, therefore, are
not reported as assets in g overnmental funds.

$58,232,005
( 19,94 1,161)

Capital Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Property taxes receivable wilt be collected this year, but are not available soon enough to pay
for the current period's expenditures, and , therefore, are deferred in the funds.

38,290,844
385,626

Some liabilities, including net pension obligations, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds - Net Pension liability
( 33,248,000)
Deferred outflows and inflows or resources related to pensions are applicable to future
periods, and therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Deferred Outflows of Resources Pension Expense
Deferred Outflows of 2015 Employer Contributions
Contribut ions Related to Pensions

$

594,000
2,178,820

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

2,772,820
2,377,000)
4 19,302

Deferred Charge on Refunding
Establish allowance for doubtful accounts - property taxes receivable

42,500)
388,998)

Other Postempl oyment Benefits
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable. are not due and payable in the current period,
and, therefore , are not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year end
consist of:
Bonds Payable
Accrued Interest on Bonds
Compensated Absences

($32,765,000)
(
192,043)
( 1,070 ,886)

( 34,027,929)
($19,724,360)

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Auditor's Report
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HUNTINGDO N AREA SCHOOL DISTR ICT
STATEMENT O F REVENUES , EXPENDIT URES , AND CHA NGES IN FU ND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDE D JUNE 30, 2015

Total
Gov ernmental
Funds

Capital
General

Reserv e

Revenu es

Local Sources
State Sources
Federal Sources
Total Revenues

$11,790,036
13,606,743
654,024

$

$26,050,803

$

0

$11,790,656
13,606,743
654,024

620

$26,051,423

$14,099,138
8,417,394
485,651
0
1,125,000
930,138

$

a
50,003
0
304,998
0

a

a
a

$14,099,138
8,467,397
485,651
304,998
1,125,000
930,138

35,666

0

35,666

Expe nditures

Instructional Services
Support Services
Operation of Noninstructional Services
Capital Outlay
Debt Service - Principal
Debt Service - Interest
Debt Service - Issuance Costs
Refund of Prior Year Receipts

620

a

a

Total Expenditures

$25,092,987

$

355,001

$25,447,988

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over Expenditures

$

957,816

($

354,381)

$

Other Financing Sources (U ses)
Premium on Refunding Bonds Issued

$

a
a
a
a
a
450,833)
a

($

110,143)
18,685,000
232,091)

($

Refunding Bonds Issued
Bond Issuance Costs
Sale of Fixed Assets
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out
Payments to Escrow Agent- Refunding Bonds

(

a
a

450,833)

$

Net Change in Fund Balances

$

506,983

($

Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

300,833
53,548)

($

150,000)

$

453,435

4,745,005

3,293,035

8,038,040

$ 5,251,988

$ 3,239,487

$ 8,491,475

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Auditor's Report.
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300,833
450,833)
18,342,766)

18,342,766)

($

110,143)
18,685,000
232,091)

a

300,833

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

603,435

HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2015

$ 453,4 35

Net Change in Fund Balan ces - Gov ernmental Funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are diffe rent because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities , the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as dep reciation

expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current
period.

$ 304,998
( 1,845,182)

Capital Outlays
Depreciation Expen se

( 1,540,184)
4,000

Dec rease in allowance for uncotlecnbres for real estate taxes.

Governmental funds report district pension contributions as expenditures. However in the
statement of activities , the cost of pension benefits earned net of employee con trib utions is
reported as pension expense.
District pension co ntributions
Cost of benef its earned net of employee con tributions
(pension expense from the pens ion sched ule )

$2 ,178,820
( 3,055 ,000)

876 ,180)

Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months afte r the District's year
end , they are not considered as "available" revenues in the governmental funds . Deferred
inflows of resources decreased by this amount during the year .

54,823)

Issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds) provides current financial resources to govern mental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-te rm debt cons umes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. However, neither transaction has any effect on net
pos itio n. Also , governme nta l funds report the effe ct of issuance costs , premiums, discounts ,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amou nts are deferred and
amort ized in the statement of acti vities. Repayment of note principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net
position. The effec t of these tran sactions in the statement of act ivities is shown .

84 ,747

In the stat ement of activities , certain operating expenses - other postempfoyment ben efits are measured by the amounts incurred during the year ve rsus financial resources used .

151,698)

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amou nt reported in the
governmental funds because inte rest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it is
due , and, thus , requ ires the use of cu rrent financial resources . In the statement of activities,
interest expense is reco gnized as the interest accrues, rega rdless of when it is due . The
decrease of interest accrued in the statement of activities over the amou nt due is show n here.

144,204

In the statement of activities, certai n operating expenses-compensated absences (vacations
and sick days) are measured by the amounts earned duri ng the year. In the governmenta l
funds; however, expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial
resources used . This amount rep resents the difference between the amount earned versus
the amount used.

42,178

($1,894,321)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Auditor's Report
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 , 2015

Food
Servic e

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Intergovernmental Receivables
Interfund Receivables
Inventories

$320,752
120,821
7,766
53,696

Total Current Assets

$503,035

Noncurrent Ass ets

$ 30,837

Machinery and Equipment, Net

TOTAL ASSETS

$533,872

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current Liab ilitie s

$ 51,062
2,615
11,176

Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue

$ 64,853

Total Current Liabilities
Non current Liabilities

$ 14,090
143,167

Long-Term Portion of Compensated Absences
OPEB
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

$157,257

Total Liabilities

$222,1 10

Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

$ 30,837
280,925

Total Net Position

$311 ,762

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

$533,872

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Auditor's Report
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES . EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 ,2015

Food
Service

Ope rating Revenues
Food Service Revenue

$ 280,282

Ope rating Expe nses

$ 357,503
270,221
9,421
379,285
7,811

Salaries
Employee Benefits
Other Purchased Services

Supplies
Depreciation

$1,024,241

Total Operating Expenses

($ 743,959)

Operating (Loss)
Nonope rating Revenu es

$

State Sources
Federal Sources
Total Nonoperating Revenues

95,903
542,439

$ 638,342
($ 105,617)

(Loss) Before Operating Transfers
Ope rating Transfers
Ope rating T ransfers In

$ 150,000
$

Change in Net Position

44,383
267,379

Total Net Position - Beginning

$ 311 ,762

To tal Net Position - Ending

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Audito r's Report
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 , 2015

Food

Service
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Users
Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Cas h Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Serv ices
Cash Payments for Ot her Ope rating Expen ses

$277 ,332
( 632 ,284)
( 381 ,811)
(
9.421 )
($746,184 )

Net Cash (Used for ) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non capital Fina nci ng A ctiviti es
State Sources
Federal Sou rces
Operating Transfers In

$ 93 ,836
505,266
150,000

Net Cas h Provided by Noncapital Financing Act ivities

$749,102

Cash Flow s f rom Capi tal and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of Equ ipme nt

($ 26,695 )
($ 23,773 )

Net (Dec rease) in Cas h and Cash Equivalents

344,529

Cas h and Cash Eq uiva len ts - Beginning

$320,752

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Reconc iliation of Ope rating Income to Net
Cas h (Used for) Op er atin g Activities

($743 ,959)

Operating (loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating (Loss)
to Net Cash (Used fo r) Operating Ac tivities :
Depreciation and Net Amortization
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories
(Increase) Decrease in Interf und Receivables
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries and Benefits
Increase (Decrease) in Defer red Revenue
Inc rease (Decrease) in Lon g-Term Compensate d Absences
Inc rease (Dec rease) in OPES

$

7,61 1
6,881)
2,241)
2,526
6,655
2,950
19
13064)

T otal Adjustments

($

Cash (Used for) Operating Activit ies

($746 ,184)

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Auditor's Report
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Agency

ASSETS
$50 ,191

Cash and Cash Equivalents

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

$50 ,191

Net Posit ion
Restricted

$

°

$50,191

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

See Accompanying Notes and Independent Auditor's Report
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HU NTINGDON AREA SC HOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 3D, 201 5

No te 1:

Summary of Significant Acco un ting Po lici es
A. Descript io n of Govern m ent-Wide Finan ci al Statem ents
The government-wide financial stateme nts (i.e., the statement of net position and the

statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
School District unit. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial
statements.
Governmental activities, whic h normally are supported by taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions are reported
sepa ratel y from business-type activities, whi ch rel y to a significant extent on fees and
charges to external customers for support.

B. Reporti ng Entity
The school boa rd, a nine -member group con stituting an on-going entity. is the level of
govern ment, which has governance responsibilitie s over all activities related to public
elemen tary and seconda ry school education wit hin the jurisdiction of the Huntingdon
Are a School District. Th e board rece ives funding from local, state , and federal
government sou rces and must comp ly with the requirements of these funding source
entities .
Governmental Accounting Stand ards Boa rd Statement #61 , The Financial Reporting
Entity estab lishes criteria for determining which organization s shoul d be included in a
governmental fin ancial reporting ent ity. The financi al reporting entity consists of the
prima ry government and any of its component units.
The fina ncial statements include only those of the Huntingdon Area School District,
which is the primary governmental entity.
The criter ia used in determin ing whether other organizations should be included in the
School District's financial reporting entity are financial interdependency, selection of
govern ing authority, designation of management. ability to significantly influence
operations , accountab ility fo r fiscal matters, scope of public service and special
financing relationships. As of June 3D, 2015, it has been determined that there are no
other orga nizations , authorities, or other governmental units that should be included as
part of the reporting entity as com ponent units.
The following are not component units of the Huntingdon Area School District and are
not inclu ded in th is report.

Appalachia Int erm ediate Unit 11 is a sepa rate legal ent ity. It was organized by a group
of public school districts to provide the m specific services. Each public school district
appoints one me mbe r to serve on the Board of Directors of the Unit. The District
contracts with the Unit for special edu cati on services for district stude nts.
Huntingdon Coun ty Career and Technology Center is a separate legal entity. It was
organized by a g roup of pub lic school districts to provide specific services . Each of the
public school di stricts appoints one member to serve on the Joint Operating Com mittee
and each district has an ong oing finan cial responsibility to the Center.
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEN TS
JUNE 30, 2015
(CONTINUED)

Note 1:

Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Continued)
c. Basi s of Pres enta t ion · Gov ernm ent-Wide Financ ial Statements
W hile separate qovemment-wide and fund financial statem ents are presented, they are
interrelated. The governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental
funds, while business-type activities incorporate data from the School District's
enterprise funds. Se parate financial statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary fund s, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements .

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements.

D. Basis of Presentation· Fund Financ ial Statements
The fund financial statements provide informatio n abo ut the School District's funds,
including its fiduciary funds .
Separate statem ents for each fund category gove rnme ntal , proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented . The emphasis of fund
fina ncia l statements is on major governmen tal and enterprise funds, each displaye d in
a separate column. Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported
as separate col umns in the fund financial statements.
The Scho ol District reports the follo wing major governme ntal fund s:
• The general fund is the School District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial res ources of the School District, except those specifically required to be
accounted for in another fund.
• The capital reserve fund is used to account for moneys transferred during the year
from appropriations made for any part icula r purpose which may not be needed or
surplus moneys at the end of the year. Th e moneys in this fund may be expended
only for capital imp rove ments and for replacem ent of and additions to public works
and improvements, and for deferred mainten ance , and for the purchase or
replacem ent of schoo l buses , and for no other purpose.
The School Distr ict reports the following major enterprise fund:
• Th e food service fund acco unts for the operation of the School District's cafeterias.
Add itionally, the School Dist rict repo rts the follow ing fund types :
• The agency funds account for assets held by the Sch ool Distr ict as an agent fo r the
individual schools , students, and school organizations as well as for the individual
schools' facu lty .
During the co urse of operations, the School District has activity between funds for
various purposes . A ny residu al balances outstanding at year end are reporte d as due
from/to other fu nds and advanc es tolfrom other funds. Whi le these balances are
reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation
of the governmen t-wide financial statements . Bal ances between the funds included in
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOO L DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015
(CONTINUED)

Note 1:

Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Con tinued)

D. Basis of Presentation - Fun d Financial Statements (Continued)
governmental activities (i.e., the governm ental funds) are eliminated so that only the
net amount is included as internal balances in the governmental activities column.
Similarly , the net amount is included as internal balances in the busin ess-type activities
column .
Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between
funds. In fund financial statements , these amounts are reported at gross amou nts as

transfers in/out. While reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are
made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Transfers
between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the
net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly,
the net amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities column.
E. Measurement Focus and Basi s of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of
resources being measured such as current financial resources or economic resources.
The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in
the financial statements.
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as
all eligibility requirements Imposed by the provider have been met.
The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the School District considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of longterm debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sources.
Property taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are considered to
be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements
are met, including any time requirements, and the amount is received during the period
or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year end).
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures
-25-

HUNTINGDDN AREA SCHOOL DISTRI CT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST ATEM ENTS
JU NE 3D, 2015
(CO NTINUED)

Note 1:

Summary of Si gnifi cant Accounting Polici es (Continued)
E. Measurem ent Fo cus and Basis of Accounting (Cont inued)
have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the
amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue
source (within 60 days of year end). All other revenue items are considered to be
me as urable and ava ilable only when cas h is received by the School Distr ict.

The proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. The agency fund has no measure ment focus but
utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for reportin g its as sets and liabilities .
F. Assets, Liabilities. Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resources, and Net PositionlFund Balance
1. Cas h and Cas h Equivalents
The School District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on
hand, demand deposits, and pooled funds which can be immediately converted into
cash.
2. Inventories
Food inventories of $53,696 include $8,006 of food commodities donated by the
federal government, which are valued at an estimated market value. All other food
or supply inventories are valued at last unit cost in accordance with the
recommendations of the food and nutrition service of the Department of Agriculture
and are expensed as used. General fund inventories consist of paper and supplies
and are valued at cost.
3. Capital A ssets
Capital assets, which include land, buildings, building improvements, equipment,
and improvements other than buildings are reported in the applicable governmental
or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements.
The School District defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of
more than $4,000. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if pu rchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Upon sale or retirement
of land, bUildings, and equipment, the cost and related accumulated depreciation, if
applicable, are eliminated from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or
loss is included in the results of operations.
Major outlays for ca pital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed . Interest incurred during construction is not capitalized.
Buildings, building improvements, equipment, and improvements other than
buildings of the Sch ool District and it component unit are depreciated using the
stralqht-line metho d over the following estimated lives:
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Note 1:

Su mmary of Sig nificant Ac c o unti ng Pol icies (Continued)
F. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resoun:es, an d Net PositionlFund Balance (Cart)

3. Capita l Asset s (Co ntinued)
Assets
Buildings
Building Imp rovements
Equipment
Im provements other than buildings

15 · 40
5 - 30
3 - 20
10 - 20

4. Net Positio n Flow A s sum ption
Sometimes the School Distri ct will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both
restricted (e.g., rest ricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In
order to calcu late the amount s to report as restricted - net position and unrestricted
- net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund fina ncial statements, a
flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
con sidered to be applied.

It is the School Dist rict's policy to consider rest ricted - net position to have been
depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied .
5. Fund Balance Flow Assumptions
Sometimes the School Distri ct will fund outla ys for a particular purpose from both
restricted and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and
unassigned fund bala nce). In order to calculate the amounts to repo rt as restricted ,
committed, assig ned , and unassigned fun d balance in the gove rnmental fund
financial statem ents , a flow assumption must be made about the order in wh ich the
resources are considered to be applied. It is the School District's policy to consider
restr icted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the com ponents
of unrest ricted fu nd balance. Further , when the components of unrestricted fund
balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fu nd balance is depleted
first, followed by assigned fund balance . Unas signed fund balance is applied last.
6. Fund Ba lance Policies
Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the
nature of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes . The
School District itself can establish limitations on the use of resources through either
a commitment (co mmitted fund balance) or an assignment (assig ned fund
ba la nce) .

In the gov ernm ent al fund financial stateme nts, fund balances are classified as
follows:
Nonspen dable ~ amounts that cannot be spent because they are in a
nons pendable form (e.g., inventory or prepaid expense s) or legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact (e.g., principal of a permanent
fund ) .
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Note 1:

Sum mary of Significant A ccounting Po licies (Continued)

F. Assets, Liabilities,Deferred OutfiowsllnfllMlS o/Resources, and Net PositionlFund Balance (Coot)
6. Fund Balanc e Policies (Continued)
Restri cted - amounts limited by (a) external part ies , such as creditors, grantors,
and donors, or (b) legislation, such as constitutional provisions or enabling
legis lation.

Committed - amounts limited by School Board (e.g., encumbrances or future
anticipated costs). The School Board establishes, modifies, and rescinds
commitment s by passage of an ordinance or resolution, typically through the
adoption and amen dme nt of the bUdget.

Assi gn ed - amounts that are intended for a particular purpose, such as a rate
stabilization fund or segregation of an amount intended to be used at some time
in the future. Assigned fund balance is established by the School Board through
adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for a specific purpose, such as
the purchase of capital assets, construction, debt service, or other purposes.
Unass igned - amounts available for consumption or not restricted in any manner.
G. Reven ues and Exp enditures/Expenses
1. Prog ram Reve nues
Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment, and (2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function
or segment. All internally ded icated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than as program revenues.
2. Compensat ed A bsences
Under the terms of personnel policies and union contracts, employees of the
School District and its component unit accumulate sick, personal, and/or vacation
leave hours in varying amounts according to length of service and employee type.
These benefits can be available for subsequent use or for payment upon
termination or retirement. Accumulated sick, personal, and vacation expense to be
paid in future periods is accrued when the benefits are earned in the governmentw ide and proprietary fund financial statements . A liability for these amounts is
reported in governmenta l funds only for amounts that have become due and are
not yet paid.
3. Proprietary Fund s Operatin g and Nonoperati ng Revenu es and Expenses
Proprieta ry funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providinq services
and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the fund are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include
the cost of sales and services, administrative expense s, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expense s not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

-28-

HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015
(CONTINUED)

Note 1:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
H. Subseque nt Even ts
In preparing these financial statements, the District has evaluated events and
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through November 10, 2015, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued .
I.

Deferred Outflows/Inflow s of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate sect ion for defe rred outflows of resources. This sepa rate financial statement
eleme nt, oeterrea outflows of resources , represents a consumptio n of net position that
applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The government has two items that qualify for
reporting in this category. They are the deferred outflows resulting from changes in
proportions as well as contributions subsequent to the measurement date related to the
School's defined benefit pension plan and are reported in the government-wide
statement of net position. These amounts are deferred. The deferred outflow resulting
from changes in proportions is amortized over the next four years, while the
contributions subsequent to the measurement date are reported in the subsequent
year.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The government has only one type of item that qualifies for
reporting in this category. A deferred inflow resulted from the net difference between
projected and actual investment earnings and is reported in the government-wide
statement of net position. This amount is deferred and is amortized over the next four
years.
Note 2:

Deposits and Investments
Depos its
The District's carrying amount of bank deposits at June 30, 2015 is $10,452,728 and the
bank balance is $10,723,493. Of the bank balance, $500,000 is covered by federal
depository insurance and $2,578,238 is covered by collateral held in the pledging bank's
trust department , but not in the District's name. In addition, $8,145,255 of the bank
balance and book balance is invested in an external investment pool from which the
District purchased a prorata share of all investments and deposits, which are held in the
name of the fund, which is considered to be a cash equivalent by the District.

Custodial cred it ris k for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
District's deposits may not be returned or the District will not be able to recover collateral
securities in the possession of an outside party. The District's policy require that deposits
be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or PSDLAF to the extent that
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Note 2:

Deposit s and Investments (Co ntinued)

Depos its (Continued)
such accounts are so insured and, for any amounts above the insured maximum, provided
that approved collateral as provided by law shall be pledged by the depository and
obligation s of the United States of A merica, Comm onwealth of Pennsylvania, or any of its
agencies or instr umentalities ba cked by the full faith and credi t of the Commonwealth , or of
any political subdivision of the Comm onwea lth of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or
instrumentalit ies backed by the full fait h and credit of the polit ica l subdivision.
Dep osits of the District's reporting entity are insured or collate ralized wit h securities held by
the District, its agent, or by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in
the name of the District, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution or by its trust department or agent but not in the District's name.

In vestm ents
Investments are categorized into these three categories of credit risk:
1. Insured or registered , or securities held by the District or its agent in the District's
name .
2. Uninsured and unreg istered, with securities held by the ccunterparty's trust department
or agent in the District's name .
3. Uninsu red and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust
depart ment or agent , but not in the District's name.
At year-end, the District had no investments.
District's Investment Policies
Credit ri s k is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligatio ns. Generall y, the District's investing activities are managed under the custody of
the busines s manager, or designee. Investing is performed in accordance with the
investment policies adopted by the District's Board of Directors complying with State
Statu es and the Pennsy lvania School Code. District funds may be invested in U. S.
treasury bills, short-term obligatio ns of the United States Government or its agencies or
instrumentalities, deposits in savinqs accounts or time deposits or share accounts of
institutions insured by the Federal Depos it Insurance Corporation or PSOLAF to the extent
that such accounts are so insured and, for any amounts above the insured maximum,
provided that approved collateral as provided by law shall be pledged by the depository
and obligations of the United States of Ame rica, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, or any of
its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the Commonwealth,
or of any political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies
or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit of the political subdivision.
Interest rate ris k is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Investments held for longer periods are SUbject to increased risk
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Note 2:

Deposi ts and Investments (Continued)

District's Inv estm ent Policies (Continued)
of adverse interest rate changes. As of June 30, 2015, the Dist rict had no investments.
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the mag nitude of the District's
investments in a single issuer.
For investments, custodial c redit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
count erparty, the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities in the possession of an outside party. Investments of the District's reporting
entity are insured or collateralized with securities held by the Distr ict, its agent, or by the
pledgi ng fin ancial institutio n's trust depa rtme nt or agent in the name of the District, or
coll ateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or by its trust
depa rtme nt or agent but not in the District's name. The District's policy regarding collateral
follows State Statues .
Note 3:

Property Taxes
Real estate taxes for the School District are collected from thirteen tow nships and
borough s. Th e tax on real estate in these mun icipalities fo r public school purpose s for
fiscal year 20 15 was 39.10 mills ($39 .10 per $1,000 of assessed valuation) as levied by
the Board . Assessed valuations of pro perty are determined by the Huntingdon County and
the elected tax collectors are respo nsible for collection. The Board of School Directors
also levies per capita taxes based on the census of residents in the School Distr ict. The
tax rate under Section 679 is $5/perso n and under Act 511 is $10/person. The total per
capita tax levied by the District is $ 15/perso n. The schedule for real estate taxes levied for
each fiscal year is as fo llows :
July 1
July 1 • August 31
September 1 - October 31
November 1 - December 31
Jan uary 1

Levy Date
2% Discount Period
Face Payment Period
5% Penalty Period
Lien Date

T he ele cted tax collectors are requi red to return any uncollected real estate taxes to the
county's tax claim bureau by Janua ry 1. It has been determined the amount of outstanding
real estate taxes as of June 30, 2015 is $673 ,830.
T he Sc hool District, in acco rdance with GAAP, recognized the delinq uent and unpaid taxes
receivable reduced by an allowa nce for uncollectible taxes as determined by the
admin istra tion . A portion of the net amount estimated to be collectible, which was
mea surable and available within 60 days, was recognized as revenue and the balance
deferred in the fund finan cial state ments. All taxes, net of uncollectible amounts, are
recogn ized in the period for which levied in the gove rnment-wide financial statements,
regardless of when collecte d.
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Note 3:

Property Taxes (Co ntinued)

Following is a listing of taxes receivable at June 30, 2015.
All owan ce
fer
Un c ollectib l e

Net
Esti m at ed
to be

Taxes

Co llectib le

$67 3,830
26 ,373
13,710

$42 .300
200
_ _0

$631,530
26 ,173
13,710

$246,266
26,173
13,710

$385,264
0
0

$7 13.91 3

$42,500

$6 71,413

$286,149

$385 ,264

Gros s

Taxes
Re ce ivable
Real Estate
Act 511 and Other
Real Estate Transfer
Total

Note

4:

Go vernmental Funds
Tax
Revenue
Deferred
Rec ogn ized
Taxes

Capital A ss et s

Capital asset activ ity for the year ended June 30, 2015 is as follows:
Begi n ning

Ending

Bala nce

Increases

Balance

Decreases

Governm ental Activities
Capital As sets, nol being de preciated :

l and
Total Capital Asset s, not being dep reciated
Capital Asse ts, being depreciated :
Buildings and Improveme nts
Furniture and Equip ment

•

196,747

s

196,747

$51 ,132,484

6 ,597,V6
$57,730,260

Total Capital Assets , being de preciated
Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements
Furniture and Equipmen t

•

,

•
•

0

•

0

s

196,747

0

s

0

•

196,747

0

s

304,998
304 ,998

$14 ,354,897
3,74 1,082

s

1,472,147
373 ,035

Total Accumulated Depre ciation

$18,0 95,979

s

1,845,182

Total Capital Asse ts, being depreciated , net

$39 ,634,28 1

('

Governmental Activities Capita! Assets, net

$39,83 1,028

(' 1,540,184 )

a usrness-rvoe

Activ ities
Furniture and Equ ipment
Less: Accumula ted Depreciation
Business-Type Ac tivities
Capital Assets , net

(

•
•
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77,Q62
65,109 )
11,953

1,540 ,184)

•

26,696
7,812)

s

18,884

(

•
•

•
•
•
s

•

0

$51,132,484
6,902,774

0

$58,035,258

0
0

$15,827,044
4,114,117

0

$19,94 1,161

0

$38,0 94,097

0

$38,290,844

0

0
0
0

•

(

I

103,758
72 92 1)

30,837
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Note 4:

Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to function s of the District as follows :
Governmental Activities
$1 ,1 13,782
266,500
464,900

Instructional Services
Supporting Serv ices
Unallocated Depreciation
Total Depreciation Expense, Governme ntal Activities

Note 5:

$1 ,845,182

Pension Plan

Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability. deferred outflows of resources and
defe rred inflows of resources related to pensio ns, and pension expense , information about
the fiduciary net position of the Public School Employees' Retirement System (PSERS)
and additions to/deductions from PSERS' fiduciary net position have been determined on
the same basis as they are reported by PSERS. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. The investments are reported at fair value.
General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Descri ption
PSERS is a governmental cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan that
provides retirement benefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania. The members eligible to participate in the System include all full-time public
school employees, part-time hourly public school employees who render at least 500 hours
of service in the school year, and part-time per diem public school employees who render
at least 80 days of service in the school year in any of the reporting entities in
Pennsylvania. PSER S issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at
www.psers.state.pa.us.
Benefits Provided
PSERS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Members are eligible for
monthly retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62 with at least 1 year of credited
service; (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of credited service; or (c) 35 or more years of
service regardless of age. Act 120 of 2010 (Act 120) preserves the benefits of existing
members and introduced benefit reductions for individuals who become new members on
or after July 1, 2011. Act 120 created two new membership classes, Membership Class TE (Class T-E) and Membership Class T-F (Class T·F). To qualify for normal retirement,
Class T-E and Class T-F members must work until age 65 with a minimum of 3 years of
service or attain a total combination of age and service that is equal to or greater than 92
with a minimum of 35 years of service. Benefits are generally equal to 2% or 2.5%,
depending upon membership class, of the member's final average salary (as defined in the
Code) multiplied by the number of years of credited service. For members whose
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Note 5:

Pens io n Plan (Continued)
Ben efits Provid ed (Continued)

membership started prior to July 1, 2011, after completion of five years of service, a
member's right to the defined benefits is vested and early retirement benefits may be
elected . For Class T-E and Class T-F members, the right to benefits is vested after ten
years of service.

Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five years of
credited service. Such benefits are generally equal to 2% or 2.5%, depending upon
membership class, of the member's final average salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied
by the number of years of credited service, but not less than one-third of such salary nor
greater than the benefit the member woul d have had at normal retirement age. Members
over normal retirem ent age may apply for disability benefits.
Death benefits are payable upon the death of an act ive member who has reached age 62
with at least one year of credited service (ag e 65 with at least three years of credited
service for Class T~E and Class T-F members ) or who has at least f ive years of credited
service (ten years for Class T- E and Class T-F membe rs). Such benefits are actuarlally
equivalent to the benefit that would have been effective if the membe r had retired on the
day before dea th.
Contributions
Member Contributions:
Act ive members who joined the System prior to July 22, 1983, contribute at 5.25%
(Membe rship Class T-C) or at 6.50% (Membership Class T-D) of Ihe member's qualifying
compe nsation.
Members who jo ined the System on or after July 22, 1983, and who were active or inactive
as of July I , 200 1, contribute at 6.25% (Membership Class T-C) or at 7.50% (Membership
Class T-0) of the member 's qualifying compensation.
Members who joined the System after June 30, 2001 and before July 1, 2011, contribute at
7.50% (auto matic Membership Class T-D). For all new hires and for members who elected
Class T-0 membership , the higher contribution rates began with servic e rendered on or
after January 1, 2002 .
Members wh o joined the System afte r June 30, 2011, automatically contribute at the
Membership Class T-E rate of 7.5% (base rate) of the member's qualifying compensation.
All new hires afte r June 30, 2011, who elect Class T-F members hip, contribute at 10.3%
(base rate) of the member's qualifying compensation . Membership Class T-E and Class TF are affected by a "shared risk" provision in Act 120 of 2010 that in future fiscal years
could cause the Membership Class T-E contribution rate to fluctuate between 7.5% and
9.5% and Membership Class T-F contrib ution rate to fluctuate between 10.3% and 12.3%.

-34-

HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015
(CONTINUED)

Note 5:

Pens io n Plan (Continued)

Contrib uti on s (Continued)

Employer Contri buti on s:
The school dist ricts' contractually required contribution rate for fiscal year ended June 3D,
2015 was 20.50% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when
combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned
by employees during the year , with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liabHity. Contributions to the pension plan from the District were $2,178,820 for the year
ended June 30, 2015 .

Pensio n Li abil ities. Pensio n Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resou rces
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2015, the District reported a liabi lity of $33,248 ,000 for its propo rtionate share
of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured 85 of June 30, 2014,
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by
rolling forward the System's total pension liability as of June 30, 2013 to June 30, 2014.
The District's proport ion of the net pension liabil ity was cal culated utilizing the employe r's
one-year reported covered payroll as it relates to the total one-year reported covered
payroll. At June 30, 20 14, the District's proportion was ,0840%, which was an increase of
.0018% from its proportion measured as of Ju ne 30, 2013.
For the year ended June 30 , 20 15, the District recognized pensio n expense of $3,055,000.
At June 30, 201 5, the District reported deferre d outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
Deferred

Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Net difference between project and actual investment earnings
Changes in proportions
Differe nce between empl oyer contributions
and proportionate share of total contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Deferred

Outflows

Infl ows

of Resources

of Resourc es

$

0

o
o

$

0

2,178,820

o
o
o
o

$2,772,820

($2,377,000)

594.000

o

( 2,377,000)

The $2,178,820 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resultinq
from District contrib utions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2015. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resou rces and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Pen sion Liabil ities. Pen sio n Exp ense . and Defe rre d Outflows of Resources
and Deferred Inflows of Resou rces Rel ated t o Pensions (Continued)
Year Ended June 30:

($451)
( 451 )
( 451 )
( 451 )

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

21

A ctuarial As s umption s
The total pensio n liability as of June 30, 2014 was determined by rolling forward the
System's tota l pension liability as afthe June 30, 2013 actuarial valuat ion to June 30, 2014
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:
•

Actuarial cost method ~ Ent ry Age Normal - lev el % of pay

•

Investment retu rn - 7.50%, includes inflation at 3.00%

•

Salary increases - Effective average of 5.50%, which reflects an allowance for inflation
of 3.00%, real wage growth of 1%, and merit or seniority increases of 1.50%

•

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Annuitant Tables (male
and female) with age set back 3 years for both males and females. For disabled
annuitants the RP·2000 Combined Disabled Tables (male and female) with age set
back 7 years for males and 3 years for females.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the
experience study that was performed for the five-year period ending June 30, 2010. The
recommended assumption changes based on this experience study were adopted by the
Board at its March 11, 2011 Board meeting, and were effective beginning with the June 30,
2011 actuarial valuation.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using
a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the lonqterm expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
The pension plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established
and may be amended by the Board. Plan assets are managed with a long-term objective
of achieving and maintaining a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the
pension.
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Pen s ion Plan (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)
Long-Term
Asset Class

Ta rget

Expected Real

Allocation

Rate of Return

Public Markets Globa l Equi ty
Private Markets (Equity)
Private Rea l Estate
Global Fixed Income
U.S. Long Treasuries

TIPS
High Yield Bonds
Cash
Absolute Return
Risk Parity
M ILP s/lnfrastructure
Commodities
Finan cing (USOR)

19%

5.0%

21 %
13%
8%
3%
12%
6%
3%

6.5%

10%
5%

4.8%
3.9%
5.3%
3.3%
1.1%

4.7%
2.0%
1.4%
1.2%
1.7%
0.9%

3%
6%
~% )

100%

The above was the Board's adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates of
geometric real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 3D, 2014.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from
employers will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on
those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
proje cted benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of th e Distri cts Proporti onate Share of th e Net Pen sion Liability
to Changes in th e Discount Rate
The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of
7.50%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.50%) or 1-percentage-point higher
(8.50%) than the current rate:

Decrease

Current
Discount
Rate

Increase

6.50%

7,50%

8.50°/0

$41 ,472,000

$33,248,000

$26,227,000

1%

District's proportionate share of
the net pen sion liability
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Pen sio n Plan (Continued)
Pen sion Plan Fid uc iary Net Po si tio n

Detailed information about PSERS' fiduciary net position is available in PSERS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report wh ich can be found on the System's website at
www.pse rs.state .pa.us.

Condensed summary information of the District's proportionate share of the PSERS
assets, liabilities , and net position from the PSERS Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report for the year ended June 30, 20 14 is as follows:
$45,885,884
( 1,382,590)

Assets
Liabilities
Net Posit ion Held in Tr ust fo r Benefits

$44,503,294

As of June 30, 2015, the District had the following elements related to its PSERS Plan:
Tot al Pension Expense

$2,178,820

Total Pens ion Expenditure s

$2,258,927

In add ition, as of June 30, 2015, the District had a payable of $682 ,111 to the PSERS

pension plan. The amount of $485,651 represents the second quarter 2015 required
contributions, while $196,460 represents the liability related to accrued payroll as of
June 30 , 20 15.
Note 6:

Du e f rom Other Government Rec eivable

This account reflects; (1) expenditures made from local monies for various vocational
education and federal programs in which final payments of the grant have not been
received as of June 30, 2015 , (2) the states social security benefit reimburse ment accrued
for the year ended June 30, 2015.
St at e Subs idies
Soci al Security
Retirement
Rental

$ 49,536
98,230
1,780

$149,546

Fed eral Subsidies
Title I
Access
Title II

$ 44,991
229,266
16,291

290,548
357,320

IDEA B Funds
IU 11

32,986

Huntin gd on Co unt y Tee

28,843
236

Miscell an eou s

$853,479
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Note 7:

Fund Balance

A portion of the fund balance of the general fund has been identified as assigned:
$1,303,579
1,289,370
844,680
200,000

Future Employee Benefit Costs
Capital Projects
Special Ed and CharterSchool Costs
CurricuJumlTechnology

$3,637,629

Note 8: Long-Term Debt
The amount of long-term debt is $67,630,141, which is consistent with the generally
accepted accounting principles that exclude interest and administrative expenses payable
in future years from debt statements on general obligation bonds or other long-term debts.
The total long-te rm debt represents the following:
Net Pension Liability

$33,248,000
32,765,000
1,084,976
532,1 65

General Obligation Bonds

Long-Term Portion of Compensated Absences (Accumulated SickLeave)
OPES

$67,630,141

Total Long-Term Debt Obligations

A. General Obligation Bond s. Series of 2015
On June 30, 20 15, the District issued $10 ,000,000 of general obligation bonds.
The proceeds of the 20 15 bonds will be used to advance refund a porti on of the School
District's remaining outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series 2011 being
$9,315 ,000 principal amount stated to mature on March 1, 2025 to and including
March 1, 2036 ; and to pay the costs of issui n9 th e 20 15 bonds.
This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the
next 21 yea rs by $1,161 ,11 9 and re sulted in an economic qaln of $739,955. Debt
service to maturity is as follows:
Period
Ending

09/0 111 5
03/01116
06/30/16
0910 1116
03/01/17
06/30/17
09101117
03/01/18
06/30/18

Principal

s

145,000.00

Co upon

0.400 %

Interest

s

56,424.15
166,207.50

Annual
Debt Servic e

Debt Service

$

201,424.15
166,207.50
$

40,000.00

0.750

166,207.50
166,057.50

206,207.50
166,057.50

40,000.00

2.000

166,057.50
165.657.50

206,057.50
165,657.50

367,631.65
372,265.00
371,715.00
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A. General Obli gation Bonds. Series of 2015 (Continued)
Period

Annual

Ending

Principal

s

Co upon

Interest

s

40.000.00

2.000 %

40,000.00

2.000

165,257.50
164,857.50

205 ,257.50
164 ,857.50

40 ,000.00

2.000

164 ,857.50
164 ,457.50

204,857.50
164,457.50

40 ,000.00

2.125

164,457.50
164 ,032.50

204,457.50
164 ,032.50

45 ,000.00

2.500

164,032.50
163,470.00

209,032.50
163,470.00

45 ,000.00

2.500

163,470.00
162 ,907.50

208.470.00
162,907.50

09101/24
03/0 1125
06130125

235 ,000.00

2.750

162,907.50
159,676.25

397.907.50
159,676.25

09101125

715 ,000 .00

2.750

159,676.25
149,845.00

874,676.25
149,845.00

730,00 0.00

3.000

149,845.00
138,895.00

879,845.00
138,895.00

760, 000.00

3.000

138,895.00
127,495.00

898.895.00
127,495.00

780,000.0 0

3.250

127,495.00
114,820 .00

907,495.00
114,820.00

810 ,000.00

3.250

114,820 .00
101,657 .50

924.820.00
101.657.50

835,000.00

3.700

101,657.50
86,210 .00

936.857.50
88.210.00

865 ,000 .00

3.700

86,210.00
70.207.50

951.210 .00
70.207.50

895 ,000.00

3.700

70,207.50
53.850.00

965,20 7.50
53,650.00

09101/ 18
03101/19
06/30/ 19
09 /01/19
03101/20
06/30/20
09101 /20
03101 /2 1
06 /30121
09101 /2 1
03101/22

165.657.50
165,257.50

$

205 .657 .50
165.257.50
$

369,315.00
368.490.00

03101123
06130123
09101123
03/0 1124

372.502.50

06130124

03/0 1/26
06/30/26
09 /01126
03 /0 1/2 7
08/30/27
09/01/2 7
03 101/28
06 /30 /28
09/01 /28
03 /01/29
06 /30/29
09 /01/29
03/01130
06 /30/30
09 /01/30
03 /01/3 1
06130/31
09101 /31
03101/32
06 /30 /32

0910 1132

370,915.00
370.115.00

06130122
09101122

Debt Service

Debt Servic e

371,377.50
557.583.75
1.024.521.25
1.018,740.00
1.028,390.00
1,022,315.00
1,026,477. 50
1,022.867.50
1.021,4 17.50

03101 /33
06130/33

1,018.857.50
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Long-Term Debt (Continued)

A. General Oblig ation Bond s, Se ries of 2015 (Continued)
Period
Ending

09/01133
03/01 /34
06/30/34
09/01/34
03/01/35
06/30/35
09/01/35
06/30/36

Principal
$

Coupon

Debt Service

Int erest

$

$

930,000.00

3.700 %

965,000.00

3.700

36,445.00
18,592.50

1,001,445.00
18,592.50

1,005,000.00

3.700

18,592.50

1,023,592.50

53,650.00
36,445.00

Annual
Debt Se rvice

983,650.00
36,445.00
$ 1,020,095.00

1,020,037.50
1,023,592.50
$5,1 37,221.65

$10,000,000.00

$15,137,221.56

$15,137,221.65

B. General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2013
On May 8, 201 3, the District issu ed $5,495 ,000 of Ge neral Obliga tion Bonds . The
proceeds were used to advance refund the School District's General Obligation Bonds,
Series of 2008 and to pay the cost of issuing the 2013 Bonds.

The advance refunding resulted in an economic gain of $150,236.
Debt service to maturity is as follows:
Total
Date

06/30/15
08/01/15
02/01 /16
06/30/16
08/01116
02101117
06130/17
08/01 /17
06/30/18

P rincipal

Coupon

$1,125,000.00

2.000%

Interest

~

Fiscal Total

$1,186,130.00
$

34,450.00
23,200.00

$ 1,159,450.00
23,200.00
1,182,650.00

1,145,000.00

2.000

23,200.00
11,750.00

1,168,200.00
11,750.00

1,175,000.00
0.00

2.000

11,750.00
0.00

1,186,750.00
0.00

$ 104,350.00

$ 3,549,350.00

1,179,950.00

$3,445,000.00

1,186,750.00

C. General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2011
On Ma rch 1, 20 11, th e District issued $9,975 ,000 of general oblig ation bonds. The
proceeds will be used to provide a portion of the funds needed for the construction of
the new middle school and to pay the costs of issuing the bonds. Debt service to
maturity is as follows:

-41-

HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JU NE 30 , 2015
(CONTINUED)

Note 8:
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C. General Oblig ation Bonds. Series of 2011 (Continued)
Date

09/01115
03/01116
09/01/16
03/01/17
09/01/17
03/01/18
09/01/18
0310111 9
09/01119
03/01/20
09/01/20
03/01/21
09/01/21
03/01/22
09/01/22
03/01/23
09/01123
03/01/24
09/01/24
03/01/25

Principal

Coupon

$ 10,000.00

3.750%

s
10,000.00

3.750

10,000.00

3.750

10,000.00

3.750

10,000.00

3.750

5,000.00

3.750

5,000.00

4.125

5,000.00

4.125

130,000.00

4.125

450,000.00

4.125

$645,000.00

D.

Total
P+ I

Interest

13,200.00
13,200.00
13,012.50
13,012.50
12,825.00
12,825.00
12,637.50
12,637.50
12,450.00
12,450.00
12,262.50
12,262.50
12,168.75
12,168.75
12,065.63
12,065.63
11,962.50
11,962.50
9,281.25
9,281.25

$ 13,200.00
23,200.00
13,012.50
23,012.50
12,825.00
22,825.00
12,637.50
22,637.50
12,450.00
22,450.00
12,262.50
17,262.50
12,168.75
17,1 68.75
12,065.63
17,065.63
11,962.50
141,962.50
9,281.25
459,281.25

$243 ,731.26

$888,731.26

Fiscal Total

$ 36,400.00
36,025.00
35,650.00
35,275.00
34,900.00
29,525.00
29,337.50
29,131.26
153,925.00
468,562.50
$888,73 1.26

G eneral Ob ligati on Bo nds, Ser ie s of 2012
O n January 5, 20 12, the District issued $10,000,000 of gene ral obligation bonds. The

proceeds will be used to provide a portion of the funds needed for the construction of
the new middle school and to pay the costs of issuing the bonds. Debt service to

maturity is as foll ows:
Principa l

Date

09/01/15
03/01/16
09/01/16
03/01/17
09/01/17
03/01/18
09/01/18
03/01/1 9
09101/1 9
0310 1120
09101120

Coupon

s
$

5,000.00

2.875%

5,000.00

2.875

5,000.00

2.875

5,000.00

2.875

5,000.00

2.875

Total
P+I

Interest
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195,608.25
195,606.25
195,534.38
195,534.38
195,462.50
195,462.50
195,390.63
195,390.63
195,318.75
195,318.75
195,246.88

s

195,606.25
200,606.25
195,534.38
200,534.38
195,482.50
200,462.50
195,390.63
200,390.63
195,318.75
200,318.75
195,24688

Fiscal Tota l

s

396,212.50
396,068.76
395,925.00
395,781.26
395,637.50
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8:

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

D. General Oblig ation Bond s. Series of 2012 (Continued)
Tot al
Prin ci pal

03101/21
09/01/21
03/01/22
09101/22
03/01/23
09/01/23
03/01/24
09101/24
03/01/25
09/01125
03/01/26
09/01 /26

03101127
09/01/27
03/01/28
09101/28
03/01129
09101/29
03101/30
09101/30
03/01/31
09101 /31
0310 1/32
09/01/32
03101133
09/01 /33
03/01/34
09/01/34
03/01/35
09/01/35
03/01136

$

5,000.00

2.875%

5,000.00

3.500

5,000.00

3.500

5,000.00

3.500

670,000.00

3.500

695 ,000.00

3.500

720,000.00

3.625

745,000.00

3.625

770,000.00

3.875

800,000.00

3.875

830,0 00.00

4.000

870 ,000.00

4.000

905 ,000.00

4.125

940,000.00

4.125

980,000.00

4.200

1,02 0,000.00

4.200

$9,990,000.00

Interest

f..:!:..!

Fiscal Total

$ 195,246.88
195,175.00
195,175.00
195,087.50
195,087.50
195,000.00
195,000.00
194,912.50
194,912.50
183,187.50
183,187.50
171,025.00
171,025.00
157.975.00
157,975.00
144,471.88
144,471.88
129,553.13
129,553.13
114,053.13
114,053.13
97,453 .13
97,453.13
80,053.13
80,053.13
61,387.50
61,387.50
42,000.00
42,000.00
21,420 .00
21,420.00

$ 200,246.88
195,175.00
200,175.00
195,087.50
200,087.50
195,000.00
200,000.00
194,912.50
864,912.50
183,187.50
878, 187.50
171,025.00
891,025.00
157,975.00
902,975.00
144,471.88
914,471.88
129.553.13
929,553.13
114,053.13
944,053.13
97,453.13
967,453,13
80,053,13
985,053,13
61,387,50
1,001,387,50
42,000,00
1,022,000,00
21,420.00
1,041,420.00

$ 395,493.76

$6,310,627.58

$16,300,627.58

Coupon

395,350.00
395,175.00
395,000.00
1,059.825.00
1,061,375.00
1,062,050.00
1,060,950.00
1.058,943.76
1.059,106.26
1,058,106 .26
1,064,906.26
1,065,106.26
1,062,775.00
1,064,000,00
1,062,840,00

E. General Obligation Bon ds, Series of 2014
On July 1,2014, Ihe District issued 58,685 ,000 of ge nera l obligation bon ds .
The proceeds of the 2014 bonds will be used to advance refunding of the School
District's remaining outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series 2010 being
$8,295,000 principal amount stated to mature on December 1, 20 15 to and including

December 1, 2023; and to pay the costs of issuing the 2014 bonds.

This advance refunding was undertaken 10 reduce total debt service payments over the
next 9 years resulted in an economic gain of $431,375. Debt service to maturity is as
follows:
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Note 8:

Lo ng-Term De bt (Continued)

E. Gen eral O bligation Bon ds, Series of 2014 (Continued)
Princ ipal
Payments

Date

09/01/15
03/01/16
09/01 /16
03/01 /17
09/01 /17
03/01 /18
09/21 /18
03/01/19
09/01 /19
03101 /20
09101 120
03/01/21
09/01121
03101/22
09101/22
03/01/23
09/01/23
03/01124

$

38,000
166,000
172,000
1.372.000
1.36 8,000
1,362 ,000
1.390,000
1,445 ,000
1,372 ,000

Assumed Semi-Annu al
Rate
Interest
1.990%

$

1.990
1.990
1.990
1.990
1.990
1.990
1.990
1.990
3.250
3.250
3.750
3.750
4.250
4.250
4.750
4.750

Semi-Annual
Debt Service

49,881.09
86.993.62
87,949.60
84,854.76
86,261.19
83,133.85
84.511.76
69,406.61
70,557.00
91,501.76
92,507.28
79.319.48
80.634.17
60 ,193.8 1
61,191.50
32.766.03
33,309.11

$

87.881.09
86,993.62
253,949.60
84,854.76
258.261.19
83,1 33.85
1,456,511.76
69,406.61
1,438.557.00
91,501.76
1,454,507.28
79,319.48
1,470,634.17
60,193.81
1.506,191.50
32,766.03
1,405,309.11

Fiscal Year
Debt Service

$ 174,874.72
338.804.36
341.395.05
1.525.918.37
1,530.058.76
1,533.826.76
1,530,827.98
1,538,957.53
1,405,309.11

$8,685 ,000

$1.234,9 72.64

$9,919,972 64

$9,91 9,97264

F. Long-Term Portion of Com pensated Absences
Pursuant to the various employment agreements (MEA and AFSC ME) and
employment contracts, unu sed accumulated sick days will be paid at a fixed, per day
amount to employees meeting certain criterion as was described in Nole 1.

The long-term portion of compensated absences to be paid in future years is estim ated
to be $ 1,139 ,576.

G. OPES Lia bility
Per actuarial calculation, the other postemployment benefit liability as of June 30 , 20 15

is $532,165 .

H.

Changes in Long-Term Debt
Balance

Balance
Increase

710 1114

Bonds
Compensated Absences

OPES
Net Pension Liability

$32 ,820,000
1,12 7,135
393 ,53 1
3 1,976, 000

$18,685 ,000

$66,3 16,666

Decrease

0

$18,740,000
42,159

138,634
1,272,000
$20 ,095 ,634

-44 -

6/3011 5

Due Within
One Year
$1,323,000

0
0

$32,765 ,000
1,084,976
532,165
33,248,000

$18 ,782,159

$67,630, 141

$1,323,000

0
0
Q
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Note 9:

Conti ng enci es

Self-Ins urance Co ntingen cy
The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Office of Employment Security, under the
Pennsylvania Unemployment Compensation Law, permits nonprofit organizations,
incl uding nonprofit educational institutions having a Federal 501(c)(3) exemption or political
subdivisions, to reimburse the unemployment compensation f und for the amount of
benefits that is attributable to service, in the emp loy of such organizations, in lieu of paying
contributions. This direct payment method has been elected by the District. The District
does not use a separate fund or account to handle these claims but rather makes these
reimbursements from the general fund on a cash basis. No liabilities are reported for
claims not paid as of the fiscal year, should any exist.

Federal and State Comp lian ce under Financ ial Assistance Grants and Pro grams
The District is liable for reimbursement of federal and/or state funds relative to any
noncompliance with laws, regulations, or contract provisions applicable to these grants and
programs.
Li tig ation
The School District is party to various legal proceedings, which normally occur, in
governmental operations. These legal proceedings are not likely to have a material
adverse impact on the funds of the District.
Note 10;

Related Party Tran saction s
The District is a member of the Tuscarora Intermediate Unit 11. Through the membership,
the District is able to secure various special services including special education,
curriculum development, and certain internal service functions. The District paid
approximately $76,217 for these services during fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.
Vocationa l-Technical School Participation
The District is served by the Huntingdon County Career & Technology Center. Students of
the District have available at the Va-Tech, courses, and curriculums related to various
technical training fields. Costs of the Vocational-Technical School are shared with other
local school districts with the Huntingdon Area contributing approximately 33% of the total.
The Huntingdon Area School District paid approximately $646,380 as its share to the
Huntingdon County Career & Technology Center during 2014-2015.
The District currently has no residual interest in this joint venture; however, it would have
an obligation to contribute its prorated share of unfunded obligations estimated in the
amount of $17,500. A copy of the annual financial report can be acquired by contacting
the business manager of the Huntingdon County Career and Technology Center.

Note 11:

Participation in th e Huntingdon County Sch oo ls Insurance Trust
The District agreed to participate in a formed insurance trust comprised of local
educational agencies, which has been specifically established to purchase health and
medical insurance coverage and dental and vision coverage from Blue Cross of Western
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Note 11:

Participation in th e Huntingdon County Schools Insurance Trust (Continued)
Pen nsylvania and Pennsylvania Blue Shield and dental and visio n coverage on a cost plus

plan in an effort to contain and limit the cost of such coverages, while establishing a
Premium Stab ilization Fu nd which wi ll be used to pay settlem ent charges and ultima tely
co nta in such coverage's cost. Since charge s are currently being levied and paid by the
Distr ict, and since the contract period ends on June 30, 2015, no receivable or payable to
the tru st has bee n reflected on the se financial state ments . As of June 30, 2015, the trust
had a positi ve funding status ; however, final settl em ent relative to that period has not been
made, As a result, the District ha s expensed all premiums made through June 30, 2015 ,
which amo unted to $3,523,421.
Note 12 :

Functio ns and Objects
The expenditures of the District prese nted on the financial statements are classified first by
Function and then by Objec t. The following is a brief de scription of same:
Functions
1. Instruction
Instruction includes all those activit ies dealing dire ctly with the interaction betwee n
teachers and students and related costs , which can be directly attributed to a program
of instruction.
a. Reg ula r Program s
Activities designe d to provide grades K-1 2 student s with learning ex periences to
prep are them for act ivities as citize ns . fami ly member s, and nonvocat ional workers
as contrasted with program s des igned to improve or overcome physical, mental,
so cial, an d/or emotion al handicaps.
b. Special Pro gram s
Activities design ed primarily to deal with stude nts having special needs. The
special programs inc lude prekindergarte n, kindergarten, elementary , and
secondary serv ices for the gifted and talented, mentall y retarded, phys ically
handicapped , emotionally di sturb ed , culturally different, students with learning
disabilities , biling ual stude nts, and special programs for othe r types of students.
c. Vocational Education
POE approved programs under public sup ervision and control whi ch provide
organi zed learning exper iences designed to develop skills, knowledg e, attitudes,
an d work habits in order to prepare indiv iduals for entrance into and progress
throug h va rio us levels of emp loyme nt in occupation al fields including agriculture,
business, distribution, health, ga inful and usefu l home economics and trade and
industry.
d . Other Instructional Prog rams - Elementary/Secondary
Ac tivities that provide grades K-12 stud ents wit h learning experiences not included
in other function codes .
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Note 12:

Functions and Objects (Continued)
Fu nctions (Continued)

1. Inst ru ct ion (Continued)
e. Ad ult Ed ucation Program s
Activities designed to develop knowledge and skills to meet immediate and longrange educa tional objectives of adults . Programs include activities to foster the
development of fundamental tools of learning; to prepare for a postsecondary
career; or for postsecondary educatio n programs; to upgrade occupational
competence , prepare for a new or different career; to develop skills and
appreciations for special interests; or to enrich the aesthetic qualit ies of life. Adult
bas ic education prog rams are included in this category.
2. Support Services
Support Services are those services , which provide administrative, technical (such as
guidance and health), and logistical supp ort to facilitate and enhance instruction.
Support services exist as adjun cts for the fulfillmen t of the object ives of instruction,
comm unity services , and enterprise programs, rather than as entities within
themse lves .
3.

Pu pil Personnel
Activities designed to assess and imp rove the wellbeing of students to supplement
the teaching process and to meet the appl icable provisions of Art icle XIII of the
Public Sc hoo l Code of 1949 , as amended , and Chapter 7 of the State Board of
Education Regu lations. Included in this subfunction are activities designed to
provide program coord ination , consultation, and services to the pupil personnel
staff.

b. Instructiona l Staff
Activities associated with assisting , supporting , advising , and directi ng the
instructional staff with or on the content and process of providing learn ing
experiences for studen ts.

c. Administration
Activities concerned with establishing and administering policy in connection with
operating the LEA.

d. Pupil Healt h
Phys ica l and mental health services , which are not direct instruction. Included are
activ ities that prov ide students with appropriate medical , dental and nurse services .

e. Bus iness
Activities concerned with pa ying , transporting , exchanging , and maintaining goods
and services for the LEA. Included are the fiscal and interna l services necessary
for operating the LEA.

-47-

HUNTINGDDN ARE A SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FI NANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015
(CONTINUED)

Note 12:

Functio ns and Ob jects (Continued)
Functions (Continued)

2. Support Services (Continued)
f.

Main ten an ce of Plant Servi ces
The activities concerned with keeping the physical plant open, comfortable, and
safe for use, and keeping the grounds, buildings, and equipment in effective
working condition and state of repair. This includes the activities of maintaining
safety in buildings , on the grounds, and in the vicinity of school.

g. St udent Tr an sportatio n Serv ices
It includes those activities concerned with the conveyance of students to and from
schools, as provided by State and Federal law. It includes transportation costs only
for trips between hom e and school.

h. Support Serv ic es - Centra l
Activities, other than general administration , which support each of the other
instructional and supporting services programs. These activities include planning,
research, development, evaluation, information staff, and data processing services.
(Expenditures may be charged to this account but if a further breakout is desired,
the following subacco unts may be used.)
3. Operation of Noninstr ucti on al Services
Operation of noninstructional services are those activities concerned with providing
noninstructional services to students, staff, or the community.
a. Food Services
Those activities concerned with providing food to students and staff in a school or
LEA. This service area includes the preparation and servicing of regular and
incidental meals, lunches , or snacks in connection with school activities and the
delivery of food.
b. Stud ent Activities
School sponso red activities under the quida nce and supervision of the LEA staff.
c. Comm unity Services
Those activities concerned with providing communit y services to students , staff, or
other community participants.
4. Fac ili ti es Acqui sition and Con struction Services
Facilities acquisition and construction services are those activities concerned with the
acquisition of land and buildings ; remodeling buildings, the construction of buildings
and additions to buildinqs; installation, replacement , or extension of service system s
and other built-in equipment and improvements to sites.
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Note 12 :

Fu nctions an d Objects

Functions (Continued)
5. Oth er Fin an cing Uses
Other financing uses represent the disbursement of a governmental fu nd not classified
in other functional areas that require budgetary and accounting control. These include
debt service payments (princi pal and interest) and transfers of monies from one fund to
another.

a. Debt Service
Servicing of the debt of the LEA including payments on general long-term debt,
authority oblig atio ns, and interest .
b. Fund Transfers
Includ ed are transaction s. wh ich withdraw money from one fun d and place it in
another without recou rse.
Obj ects

1. Salaries
Gross salaries paid to employ ees of the LEA who are considered to be in positions of
permanent nat ure or hired temporarily, including perso nnel substituting for those in
permanent positions. Th is includes gross salary for personal services rendered while
on the payroll of the LEA.
2. Personal Services - Employees' Ben efits
Amounts paid by the LEA on behalf of employees; these amo unts are not included in
gross salary, but are in addition to that amo unt. Such payments are fringe benefit
payments; and, while not paid directly to employ ees, nevertheless, are part of the cost
of personal services.
3. Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Services, which by their nature, require persons or firms with specialized skills and
knowledge . Includ ed are the serv ices of architects, eng inee rs, auditors , dentists,
medical doc tors , lawyer s, consulta nts, teachers, accounta nts, etc.
4. Purchased Property Services
Services purchased to operate, repair, maintain, and rent property owned and/or used
by the LEA. T hese services are performed by persons other than LEA employees .
5. Other Pu rch ased Se rvices
Am ou nts paid for serv ices not provided by LEA personn el but rendered by
organizations or pe rsonnel, oth er than professional and techni cal services and
purchased property services.
6. Suppli es
Amounts paid for ma ter ial items of an expendable natu re that are cons umed , worn out ,
or deteriorated in use ; or items that lose the ir identity through fabrication or
incorporation int o different or more complex units or substances.
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Note 12:

Functions an d Objec ts (Continued)
Obj ects (Continued)

7. Property
Expenditures for the acquisition of fixed assets, including expenditures for land or
existing buildings and improvements of grounds initial equipment, additional
eq uipment, and replacement of equipment.

8. Ot he r Obje cts
A mounts paid for goo ds and services not otherwi se classified in Objects 1 through 7.

9. Other Fin ancin g Uses
This series of codes is used to classify transactions, which are not recorded as

expenditures to the LEA but require budgetary or accounting control. These include
rede mpti on of principal on long-te rm debt, authority obligation s, and fund transfers .

Note 13:

Ris k Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the District
carries commercial insurance.
Note 14:

Use of Est imates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
account ing principles requires the District to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Note 15:

Lease Obli gations
The District has elected to treat the copier equipment leases as operating leases, and,
therefore, the lease items are not reflected in the District's fixed assets account group until
the purchase option is exercised .
The following is a schedule, by years of the future minimum rental payments, required
under the leases that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year as of
June 30, 20 15:
Jun e
June
Ju ne
Ju ne
Ju ne

$41 ,844
41,844
38,357

3D, 2016
3D , 2017
30, 20 18
30 , 2019
3D, 2020

o

o
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Note 16:

Interfund Receivab les and Payables

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2015 is as follows :
Recei vabl e Fund

Payable Fu nd

Amou nt

Cafeteria

General

$7,766

Miscellaneous

Interfund transfers during the year ended June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Note 17:

Transfers Out

Tran sfer s In

Ge neral Fund
General Fund

Cafete ria Fund
Capital Reserve

Amount

$150,000
300,833

For
Gene ral Transfer
General Transfer

Postretirem en t Benefits
Name of Plan
Huntingdon Area Schoo l Distri ct

Funding Policy
T he retiree medical plan is operated on a pay-as-you-go basis. There are no assets that
have been segregated and restricted to provide for retiree medical benefits.
Plan Description
All school district employees may remain on the District's Healt h and Dental Plans at their
own expense. In addition the following benefits are available for each group as outlined
below:
Teachers
T he retirement prov isio n provides that an employee with twenty year s of service, ten (10)
of which are with the District, will be paid an additional five thousand dollars ($5,000)
upon retiremen t. The sum will be placed into a 4038 or HRA account as designated by
the employee. Notification must be made in writing 120 calenda r days prior to the
employee's retirement date. The payme nt of unused sick leave at retirement or legal
disab ility will be at the rate of fifty dollars ($100) per day for the duration of the collecti ve
bargaining agreement for unlim ited accum ulation of sick leave. A retiree may elect to
rema in in the dist rict's health care plan and dental plan at the em ployee's expense. Th e
district will then deposit the amo unt of $100 multiplied by the total number of days of
his/her unu sed sick leave and perso nal days into a 4038 or HRA account as designate
by the employee. Rest rictions : the employe e must be 52 years old or older, have 15
years of service in the district, have at least 25 years in PSE RS, may not have taken a
sabba tical in his/her last year prior to retirement, and may not be on disability retire ment.
Administrators
The District will depo sit the amou nt of $150 multiplied by the total num ber of days of
his/her unu sed sick leave and personal days into a 403 8 or HRA account as design ated
by the employee . Restrictions: T he empl oyee must be 52 years old or older; have 15
years of service in the district and at least 20 years in education; May not have taken a
sabba tical in his/her last year prior to retirement and may not be on disability retirement.
Adm inistrators with 20 years of serv ice , ten years of which are with this District, will be
paid an add itional seve n thousand five hundred dollars into the 4038 or HRA as
described above.
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Note 17:

Postretirem ent Benefits (Continued)

Plan Descriptio n (Continued)

S upport Staff
With ninety (90) days' notice, all employees after 15 years of service, within the
Pennsylvania Public School System, 10 of which are in the Huntingdon Area School
District, will be paid in cash for all unused accumulated sick days at the rate of thirty
dollars ($30) per eight-hour day for the total number of hours accumulated. If an
em ployee dies while on active serv ice, the District shall pay the designated beneficiary
for said days/hou rs.
Cu stodial Union Members
Providing law permits at the time of retirement, employees with twenty (20) years of
service (at least 10 years in the Huntingd on Area Scho ol District) shall be paid into a
403 B account for all unused accum ulated sick days at 50% of daily rate excluding
overtime.
Conf ident ial Emplo yees
The District shall pay to any retiring confidential employee with 10 years of service as a
confidential emp loyee with the Huntingdon Area School District $50 per day for any
unused sick leave. Notification of retirement must be made in writing 90 days prior to the
employee s' retirement date.
Valuat ion of Assets
Th e plan has no seg regated assets .
In order to be conside red as an asset under GASB #45, the resource (stock, cash, etc.)
must be seg regated and restricted in a trust or equivalent arrang ement. Employer
contributions to the plan must be irrevocables ded icated to providing retiree benefits and
prote cted from creditors.
Annu al OPES Cost and Net OPES Obl i gati on
The District's annual Othe r Post Employment Benefit (OPES) cost (expense is calculated
based on the annua l required contribution of the empl oyer (ARC» . This is a pay-as-you-go
funded plan . The following tab le shows the components of the District's annual OPES cost
for the years, the estimated amount to be cont ributed by the emp loyees, and changes in
the District's net OPES obligation to the plan.
Net OPES Obligation as of June 30, 2015:
Annual Required Contribution (ARC)
Interest on Net OPES Obligation
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution
Annual OPES Cost

$407,1 40
15,568
( 27,534)
$395,174

Projected pay-as-you-go Expense
Net OPES Obligati on - Beginning of Year

( 312,300)
449,291

o

Prefunding
Net OPES Oblig ation - End of Year
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Note 17:

Postretirem en t Ben efi ts (Continued)

Annual OPES Co st and Net OPES Obligatio n (Continued)
The District's annual OPES cost , the percentage of annual OPES cost cont ributed to the
plan , and the net OP ES obligation for fisca l year 2015 were as follo ws :

Fis cal Year
End ed

Annu al

OPEB

OPES Cost

Expens e

June 30, 201 5
June 30, 2014

$395,174
$402,360

$312,300
$484,273

Per c en tage of
Annual OPES
Cost Co nt ributed

79%

120%

Increa se in
Net OPES
Ob ligatio n

Net OPEe
Obligation

$532,165
$393,531

$138,634
$ 41,510

Actu arial Methods and Assumptions
Actuarial Met hods
Actuarial Cost Method

Unit Credit under which the benefits (proj ected or unprojected) of each individual
included in an Actuarial Va luati on are allocated by a con sistent fo rmula to valuation
years . The Ac tua rial Presen t Va lue of benefits allocated to a valuation year is called the
Norma l Cos t. The A ctuarial Prese nt V alue of benefits allocated to all periods prior to a
valuation year is called the Actuarial Accrued Liability. The attribution period ends when
a Partic ipa nt is eligible for benefits .
A mortization of Unfunded liability
Unfu nded Liability is amortized under the leve l dollar method us ing an amortization
period of 20 years .
Treatm ent of Gai ns (Losses)
Actuarial Gains (Losses), as they occ ur, gen era lly reduce (inc rease) the Unfunded
Actuaria l A ccrued liability
Initial Adoption 01 GASB 45
July 1, 2008

V aluation Date
First da y 01the Fiscal Yea r (JUly 1, 20 13)
A sset Val uation Method
Th e ben efits are fun ded on a pa y-as-you-go basis.
Ac t uarial A s sum ptio n s
Discount Rate
A n annual rate of 4.00%
As sumed Retirement Age
100% of employees are as sumed to retire when eligible for unr educe d benefits under the
Pub lic Schoo l Employees ' Retirement System of Pennsylvania at the earlier of:
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Note 17:

Postretirement Be nefits (Continued)

Ac tu ari al Meth od s and Assum pti on s (Continued)
A ctuari al A ss umpt ions (Continued)
Assumed Retire ment Age (Continued)
• Age 60 with 30 years of service with Huntingdon Ar ea School District , or
• At least 35 yea rs of service with Hunting don Area School District, or
• Age 62 with at least 1 yea r of service
Pre-R etirem ent Mort ality
RP-2000 Em ployee Mortalit y Table (Male and Fem ale)

Post-Ret irement Mortality
RP-2000 Healthy An nuitant Morta lity Table (Male and Female)
Tu rnover before Ret irement
Actuary's Turnover Table T-5 : the following are samp le rates:

25
40
55

7.7%
5.2%

0.9%

Marriage A ssumption
80% of emp loyees are assumed to be married, with the beneficiary being the opposite
sex and the same age as the retiree .
Coverage
It is assumed tha t 65% of future retirees and 15% of spouses will participate in the reti ree
medical program . A ll current participat ing retirees and spouses are assumed to continue
participation in the medical prog ram . Dependents of retirees ma y be covered; however ,
it is as sumed tha t the participant pays 100% of the full cost of dep ende nt coverage. It is
also assum ed that the pa rtic ipant pays the full cost of dental coverage; therefore dental
cove rage is not included in this valuation. Afte r Medicare eligibility , it is assum ed that the
participa nt pays the fu ll cost fo r cove rage .
Expen ses
Expenses are incl uded in the claim costs .
Sum m ary of Princip al Pl an Provi sions
Retiree Benefits
The following retiremen t benefits are valued under GAS B 45 :
1. Med ical Coverage
No other benefit s are valued unde r GASS 45
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Note 17:

Postretirement Benef its (Contin ued)
Summary of Pri ncipal Pla n Prov is ions (Continued)
Med ica l Covera ge
Descripti on
Highmark Blue Cross/Blue Shield fully ins ured
Eligib ility
Employees who retire from active service
Pe riod of Coverage
For the life of the ret iree
Coverage
Medical coverage pro vided to active employees is continued for eligible retirees , spouses
and dependents

Contributions
Em ployee
Retiree pays the fu ll active cost of the elected coverage
One ret ired adm inistrato r pays % of the family p rem ium until age 62 and full cost after
age 62

Two retirees pay only the $100 received from PSERS for single coverage until age 65
Employer
District pays a maximum of one half of the fa mily pre mium for one retired administrator
until lhe retiree's age 62 (2017)
District pays full single prem ium less $1 ,200 pe r year for 2 retirees
For all other retirees: None

Note 18: Chang e in Accounting Pri nciples
As of July 1, 20 14, th e School Distr ict im pleme nted Government Accounting Sta ndards
Board (GAS B) Statement No. 68, Accounting, and Financial Reporting for Pensions. As a
result of this ch ang e in ac counting principle, the School District is requ ired to recognize a
net pension liability as we ll as a deferred outflow and inflow of resources related to its
PSERS Reti rement Plan on the go vernment-wide statement of net position for the first
time .
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Variance with
Final BUdget

Orig inal
Bu dg eted
Am oun ts

Fin a l
Bud geted

Actual

Amounts

(Bu d getary Bas is)

Positive
(Negative )

$11 ,384 ,196
13,062,480
582 ,146

$11,609,202
13.06 2,480
582, 146

$11,790,036
13,606,74 3
654,024

$ 180,834
544,26 3
71,878

$25 ,026 ,822

$25,253 ,828

$26,050,803

$ 796,975

$ 7 ,970,44 2
3,904,909

$ 9 ,454 ,13 0

$ 8,911,556
4,135,396
849 ,099

898,596
1,069,352
1,506 ,136
302,474
440,753

203,087
0
0
0
880,125
1,068,835
1,329,874
301,612
398,639

$ 542,574
513
50,531
78 ,7 18
0
0
0
18,471
517
176,262
862
42,114

2,299,559
2,062 ,111
0
0
481,543
0
15,000
2,058,634

2,420,559
2,062,111
5,000
0
486 ,043
0
15,000
2,091,634

2,420,154
2,013,388
4,768
0
485,650
0
0
2,090,804

405
48,723
232
0
393
0
15,000
830

$25 ,563,776

$26,069,132

$25,092,987

$ 976,145

Revenues
Local So urces
State Sources
Federa l Sources

Total Reve nues

Ex pend itures
Regular Programs
Special Programs
Voc ational Programs
Other Instructional Programs
Nonpub lic School Programs
Pre-Kindergarten
Adult Edu cation Programs
Pupi l Personnel Services
Instructional Staff Services
Administration Services
Pupil Health
Business Services
Operation and Maintenance of
Plant Services
Student Transportation Services
Central and Other Support Services
Other Support Services
Student Ac tivities
Community Services
Facilities Acquisition and Constru ction
Debt Service
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over Expenditures
Ot her Fin an cial So urc es (Us es)
Interfund Transfers In
Interfund Transfers Out
Sale of Fixed Assets
Refund of Prior Year Receipts
Budgetary Reserve

4 ,135 ,909
899,630

899 ,63 0
1,672 ,638
0
0
0
898,596
867,352
1,713,135
279,474
440,753

($

534,954)

$
(

0
990,000)
0
0
337,563)

28 1,805
0
0
0

($

815,304)

$

957,816

$1,773,120

$

0
990,000)
0
0
57,213)

$
(

0
450,833)
0
0
0

$

(

0
539,167
0
0
57,213

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

($ 1,327,563)

($ 1,047,213)

($

450,833)

$ 596,380

Net Change in Fund Balances

($ 1,862 ,517)

($ 1,862,517)

$

506,983

$2,369,500

Fund Ba tanc es • July 1, 20 14
Fund Balanc es - June 30, 2015

4,261,151

4,261,151

4,745,005

483,854

$ 2,398,634

$ 2,398,634

$ 5,251,988

$2,853,354
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRiC T
REQU IRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (RSI)
DEFINED BENEFIT POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN

Schedule of Funding Progre ss

UAAL as a

Actuarial
Va luatio n
Date

7f1 f1 3
711/11

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Actua rial Acc rued
L labill ty (AA L)
Entry Age

W

1l!l

(UAAl)
lb-al

'0
'0

$3,560,526
$3,874,104

($3,87 4,104)

Unfunded
AAL

($3,560.526)

TBD= To be determined
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Fund ed
Ratio

Cove red

Payroll

Percentage
of Covered
Payroll

lal b)

l£l

( b ·a)lc)

0%
0%

$9,378,561
$B,an ,416

40.11%

4 1.31%

HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATiON (RSI)
STATE MENT OF REVENUES , EXPENDITURES , AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAN CES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
JUNE 30, 201 5

An operating budget is adopted each year for the general fund on a modified accrual basis of
accounti ng.
The Pennsylvania School Code dictates specific procedures relative to adoption of the School
District's budget and reporting of its financial statements, spe cificall y:
The Schoo l District , before levying annual schoo l taxes, is req uired to prepa re an ope rating budget
for the succeeding fiscal year.
The School District is req uired to publish notice by advert iseme nt, at least once in two newspapers
of general circulation in the municipality in which it is located, and within fifteen days of final action,
that the propo sed budget has been prepared and it is available for public inspection at the
Admi nistrative Office of the School District. Notice that public hearings will be held on the proposed
operating budget must be included in the advertisement; such hearings are required to be
scheduled at least ten days prior to when final action on adoption is take n by the board.
The board of directors may make transfers of fu nds appropria ted to any part icular item of
expenditu re by legislative action. An affirma tive vote of two thirds of all membe rs of the board is
required.
Fund balances in budg etary fu nds may be appropriated based on resolutions passed by the Board
of Education , whic h author ize the School District to make expenditures.
Included in the general fu nd bUdget are program budgets as prescribed by the state and federal
agencies funding the prog ram. T hese budgets are app roved on a program-b y-program basis by the
state or fe deral funding agency.
At the end of the yea r, any remaining amount in a budgeted item must be closed , as it is not
permissible to carry the balance into the next year.
The amou nts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the
amount s when the original appropriations were adopted . The amounts reported as the final
bUdgeted amoun ts in the budgetary statemen ts reflect the amou nts in the final amended certificate
issued during the fiscal yea r 20 15.
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
ATHLETIC FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEA R ENDED JUNE 30 , 2015

Rev enue s
Football Gate Receipts
Basketball Gate Receipts
Wrestling Gate Receipts
Volleyball Gate Receipts

$ 22,441
13,159
5,910
8,487
4,099
2,400
10,308
5,428
11,425
22,916

SoccerGate Receipts
All Sport and Season Tickets
Other
Social Security Reimbu rsement

Pay to Play
Retirement Reimbursement
Total Revenues

$106,573

Expe nditures
Salaries

$184,313
55,077
59,260
63,414
49,032
2,849
10,375

Employee Benefits
Contracted Services
Transportation and Conferences
Supplies and Equipment
Dues and Fees
Rent

$424,320

Total Expenditures

($317,747)

Net Operating (Loss)

o

Operati ng Transfer In
Net (Loss)

($317,747)
36,111

Fund Balances - July 1, 2014

($281,636)

Fun d Balances - June 30 ,2015
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOO L DISTRICT
STUDENT AC TIVITIES FUN D
STATEME NT OF ASSETS A ND LIABILITIES
AS OF JUNE 30 , 20 15

$

Baseball Club
Ski Club
Argus Fund
Band Fund
Bellesand Beaus Fund
Boys Basketball
County Band
Boys Volleyball

377

1
4,872
308
271
30
500
39
127
66
757
808
2,088
1,333
187
113
22
1,690
4,408
8,762
3,386
3,162
17
39
2,506
268
3,212
1,359

Choral Club
Bio C lub

Class of 2015
Class of 2016
Class of 2017
Class of 2018
FFA
Cheer Team
Field Hockey Club
Student Field Trips
Key Club
l yceum Fu nd

Musical
National Honor Society
Boys Soccer
Stage Crew

Student Council
Volleyball Club
Varsity Club
District'County/Regional Chorus
Leadership
Middle School Student Council
Middle School Cheerleaders
Middle School Yearbook

6
7,441
114
1,439

s 49,708

Total
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN INFORMATION
RELATED TO THE PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC SCHOOL
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSERS)
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICrS PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

As of
June 30 , 2014
Measureme nt Date

District's Proportion of the Collective Net Pension Liability

.0840%

District's Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Pension Liability

$33 ,248 ,000

District's Covered Employee Payroll

$10,713 ,000

District's Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Pension Liability
as a Percentage of its Covered Employee Payroll
PSE RS' Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the T otal Pension Liability
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310.35 %
57.24 %

HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMAliON
DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN INFORMATION
RELATED TO THE PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC SCHOOL
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSERS)
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTION

For the year ended
June 30, 2015

$ 2,772 ,820

Contractually Required Employer Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required Contributio n

2,178,820

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

$

District's Covered Employee Payroll

$10 ,824 ,6 94

Employer's Contributions in Relation to the Contractually Required
Contribution as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll
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594 ,000

20.1 3%

HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
DEFINED BE NEFIT PENSION PLAN INFORMATION
RELATE D TO T HE PENN SYLVA NIA PUBLIC SCHOOL
EMPLOYEES ' RET IREMENT SYSTEM (PS ERS)
NOTES TO REQUIR ED SUPPLEME NTARY INFORMATION

Changes in Ben ef it Tenn s
None
Cha nges in A ss umption s
None
Meth od and Assumption s Used in Calculations of Act uariall y Deter mined Co ntribu tions
T he actu ar ially dete rmin ed co ntrib utions a re ca lculated as of the June 30 preceding the fiscal yea r in
which contributions are ma de. That is, the contributio n calc ulated as of the June 3D, 2013 actua rial
valuatio n will be m ade during the fis cal year ended June 3D, 2015. The fo llowing actuarial methods
and assumpt ions were used to determi ne contribution rates reported in that sched ule:
•
•

•
•

Invest ment return - 7.50% , includes inflation at 3.00%
Salary increases - Effective average of 5.50%, which reflects an allowance for inflation of 3.00%,
real wag e growth of 1%, and merit or seniority increases of 1.50%
Benefit payments - no postretirement benefit increases assumed in the future
Mu ltiple decrement tables - mortality, vesting, retirement age , and withdrawal estimates are based
upon tab les provided by the actuary
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTR ICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEA R ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Sou rce

CFDA

CO<1.

Num ber

Pass Th rough
Grantor's
Num ber

84.010
84 .010

013-150195

07/0 1/14-09/30/1 5

013-140195

07101113-0 9130/14

64.367

020- 131195
020-140195

07/01114 -09130115
07/01113·0 9/30114

84.027
84,413A

H027A14Q093
B4 13A 1400D4

07101 /1 4-0613011 5

Fe de ral
Federa l Gran lo r Pro jll'Ct Title
U.S. Department o f Ed uca tio n
(P assed Through the Pe nnsylvania Departmen t of Education)
Title I
Title I

Grant Period

Total Tit le I

Title II
Title II

84 ,357

Total T ille II

(Pas sed T hrough the Intermed iate Unit 11)
Individual s with Disabilities Educa tion Act
Race to the Top

07/0111 4-09130/1 5

'r ctatrntermectate Unit II

Tota l U.S. Depa rtmen t of Education

U.S. Department of Agr icu lture
(Passed Th rough the Pennsylva nia Department of Education)
National Schoo l Lunch
N ational School Lunch

10 .555

NlA
NfA

07101/1 3·06/30/1 4
07 /01/13·0613011 4

NfA

NlA
NlA

07101 /13 -06130/14

FN S Equipment G rant

10.579

NfA

07/01/ 14-06 /30 /15

(P assed T hrough the Penns ylvania Department of Agriculture)
Value of USDA Commo dities
Value of USDA Commodities

10.550
10. 550

NfA
NfA

07/0 1113-06/30f 14
07/01/1 2-06/30f13

NfA

Total National School Lunch

Breakfa st Program
Breakfast Program

10.553

07/01113...Q613011 4

Total Breakf ast Program

Total Value of USDA Donated Commodities

Total U,S. Dep artment of Agr icu lture

Less : State Sh are of A ssistance

TOTA L EXP ENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

I -uunrect Funding
F - Federal Share
S • Stale Share
• - Designates Major Program
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Total
Received

Pr o gram
o r Awa rd

Amou nt

•
•
•
•

4 12,112

386.696
798,808

122,534
122,7 13

245,247

I 357,320
26,285

I 38 3,605

Reven ue

Year

J ulv 1. 2014

Recognized

Expend 'tures

•

379 ,249
29 ,72 7

•

408 ,976

122,534
0

•
•
•

•

410,448

•

106.243
139)

(

0
139)

•

106,104

(.

139)

I 122,534

0
0

•

0

I 383,605

I 383 ,605

46,324

I

915,115

I 9 15,115

•

61,282

63 .836
4,0 07

I 399.999

I 399,999

24,793

24,793

•

96,725 F
5,844 S

67,843

I 424 ,792

I 424 ,792

•

12,943
794

I

6 4,481
3,904

I

64,481
3,9().1

•

17,227 F
1,026 S

13,737

I

68,385

I

68,385

I

18,253

0

I

20,466

•

20,466

•

S

57,493
14,760

S

57,493
14 760

I'

8.006)
0

II

6,006)

•
•
•

357 ,320

26,265
383,605
900 ,157

S 367,110

N/A
N/A

•
•
•
•
•
S

22958

S 390,066
N/A
N/A

•
•

334,2 58
76 ,190

I

•

Acc rued or
(Defe rre d)
Revenue at
J une 30, 2015

•

S

N/A
N/A

fo r the

Acc r ued or
(Defe rred )
Reven ue at

•
•
•
•
•
•
I'

60 ,197

3672
63,869
20 ,466

•

•
•
I

0
46.463

46,463

357,320

26,285

379,249
29,727
408,976

I 122,534

I

16,291

•

•
•

357,320

26285

•

0
14 ,760l

65 ,499

I'

14,760)

•

72,253

•

72,253

66,820

•

585,896

•

585,896

26 ,628)

$1,413 ,429

S
II

4,801)

IS

I 108,343

28,697)

$1,472,314
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44,991
16,291
0

I

539,900

Q

•

122,534
0

Q

65,499

44 ,991

IS

28 ,697)

$1,472,314

•
(I

•

0
0

0

102,56 9

0

112,816
6,870)
167,228

HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITUR ES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Note 1: The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues were adjusted to balance the expenditures incurred for each project.

Note 2: The 25% test was satisfied as follows:
$

26,285
408,976
399,999
72,253
122,534
64,481
357,320
20,466

Race to the Top
T itle I
National Sc hool Lunch Program
Va lue of USDA Dona ted Commodities
Title II
Breakfast Program

IDEA
FNS Equipment Grant

$1,472.314
X

25%

$ 368,079

Minimum Amount which Must Be Tested

Extensive compli ance tests, as required by the Single Audit Act of 1996, were performed on
the Child Nutrition Cluster, which represents 36% of the total expend itures reflected on the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
Note 3: The commodities are valu ed at market value, which represents the costs to replace these
commodities.
Note 4: The School District had a receivable of $11 1,895 for the Medical Assistance reimbursements
for 1he ACCESS program as of June 30, 2014. The ACCESS program is the medical
assistan ce (MA) prog ram that reimburses school entities for direct, eligible health related
services provided to MA enrolled special needs children. These reimbursements are
classified as federal money in the School's account code structure; however, these funds are
not restricted in use like other federal monies. ACCESS reimbursements are classified as
fee-for-service revenues, and are not considered federal financia l assistance, which results
in ACCESS funds not being reported on the School District's schedule of expenditures of
federal award s. During the current year, the School Districted earned $1 17,371, with a
receivable of $229,266 as of June 30. 2015.
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Young, Oakes, Brown & Company, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Huntingdon Area School District
2400 Cassady Avenue , Suite 2
Huntingdon, Pennsylvania 16652

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States , the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Huntingdon Area School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015,
and the related notes to the financia l statements, which collectively comprise the Huntingdon Area
School District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 10,
2015.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Huntingdon Area
School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financia l statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Huntingdon Area School District's internal contro l. Accord ingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Huntingdon Area Schoo l District's internal contro l.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned funct ions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control , such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
materia l misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented , or detected and
corrected on a timely basis . A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies ,
in internal contro l that is less severe than a material weakness , yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
Our considerat ion of internal control was for the limited purpose descr ibed in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies . Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified .
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INDEPENDENT AUDI TOR 'S REPORT O N INTER NAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL RE PORTING AND ON COMP LIA NCE AND OTHER MAnERS
BASED ON A N AUDIT OF FINANC IA L STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WIT H GOVERNMEN T AUDITING STANDARDS
(CONTINUE D)

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasona ble assuran ce abo ut wh ether the Huntingdon Area School District's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and gran t agreements, noncompliance with which

could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matt ers that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing , and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compl iance . This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in cons idering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitabl e for any other purpose.

Altoona , Pen ns ylvania
November 10, 2015
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Young, Oakes, Brown <& Company, P.C.
Certified Pub!ic Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Soard of Directors
Huntingdon Area School District
2400 Cassady Avenue , Suite 2
Huntingdon, Pennsy lvania 16652

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited the Huntingdon Area School District's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of the Huntingdon Area School District's major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2015 . The Huntingdon Area School District's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs .

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulat ions, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs .
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibi lity is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Huntingdon Area School
District's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred
to above . We conducted our audit of compl iance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of Ame rica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards , issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMS
Circular A-133 , Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards
and OMS Circu lar A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the type s of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis , evidence about the Huntingdon Area School District's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances .

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determinat ion of the Huntingdon Area
School District's compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinio n, the Huntingdon Area School District, complied , in all material respects, with the types
of comp liance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and mate rial effect on each of
its major federa l programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133
(CONTINUED)

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of the Huntingdon Area School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Huntingdon Area
School District's inte rnal control over complia nce with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major fede ral program and to test and report on internal control over complia nce in accordance with
OMS Circular A- 133, but not for the purpose of express ing an opinion on the effe ctivenes s of internal
control over compliance. Acco rdingly, we do not express an opinion on the effective ness of the
Huntingdon Area Schoo l District's interna l control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functio ns, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timel y basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies , in interna l control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in interna l contro l over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a mate rial weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our conside ration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this sectio n and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies . We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compl iance is solely to descri be the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and th e results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMS Circular A-133. Accordingly, this rep ort is not suitable for any other purpose.

Altoona, Pennsylvania
November 10, 2015
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HU NTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

A. Summary of Audi t Results
1. An unqualified opinion was issued on the Huntingdon Area School District's financial
statements.

2. There were no material weaknesses in internal control identified by the audit of the financial
statements.

3. The audit did not disclose any noncompliance, which was material to the basic financial
statements of the Huntingdon Area Schoo l District.
4. There were no material weaknesses in the internal control over major federal programs
identified by the audit.
5. An unqualified opinion was issued on the School District's compliance for major federal
programs .
6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in acco rdance with Sect ion 510(a) of OMS
Circular A~ 133 are reported in this schedule.

7. The major program selected for testing was the Child Nutrition Cluster.
8. The do llar thre shold used to distinguish between Type A and Type 8 prog rams was $300,000.
9. Th e audltee did qualif y as a low-risk auditee .

B. Fin ancial Statements Find ings
Th ere were no findings relative to the financial statements noted during the audit.

C. Federal Awards Findin gs and Ques tio ned Cos t
There were no findings relative to the federal awards noted during the aud it.
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HUNTINGDON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

The prior year finding has been resolved.

·71·

Young, Oakes, Brown & Company, PoC.
Certified Public Accountants

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors
Huntingdon Area Schoo l District
2400 Cassady Avenue , Suite 2
Huntingdon, Pennsylvan ia 16652
We have audited the financia l statements of the governmental activities , the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remain ing fund information of the Huntingdon Area School
District for the year ended June 30 , 2015 . Profess ional standards require that we provide you with
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards , Government
Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133, as well as certain information related to the planned
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated
November 10, 2015 . Professional standards also require that we comm unicate to you the following
information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies . The
significant accounting policies used by Huntingdon Area Schoo l District are described in Note 1 to the
financial statements. As desc ribed in Note 5 to the financial statements, the Huntingdo n Area School
District changed accounting policies related to its pension accounting by adopting Statement of
Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions - An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 , as of July 1, 2014 . According ly, the
cumu lative effect of the accounting change as of the beginning of the year is reported in the
Stateme nt of Activities. We noted no transact ions entered into by the Huntingdon Area School District
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financ ial statements in the proper period .
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financia l statements prepared by management and
are based on manage ment's knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events . Certa in accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financia l statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting
them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the
Huntingdon Area School District's financial statements were :
Management's estimate of the compensated absences is based on accumulated sick days and
related per diem rate. We eva luated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
compensated absences in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements
take n as a whole.
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COMMUNICATIO N WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
(CONTINUED)

Sig nifica nt Audi t Fi ndings (Continued)

Qualitati ve Aspects of Accounting Practices (Conti nued)
App raisals and other estimates related to the GAS S #34 , GASS #45 , and GASS #68 compliance
and disclosure.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral , consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Perlorming the Audit
We encountered no significant difficu lties in dealing with management in performing and complet ing
our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accum ulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit , other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such miss tatements. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material ,
eit her individually or in the agg regate, to eac h opinion unit's financia l statements taken as a whole.
Disagre ements with Mana gem ent
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting , or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor's report . We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during
the course of our audit.
Management Repre sentations
We have requested certa in representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated November 10, 2015.
Management Consultations wi th Other Indep enden t Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about aUditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opin ion" on certain situations . If a consultation
invo lves application of an accounting principle to th e Huntingdon Area Schoo l District's financial
statements or a determinat ion of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional sta ndards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts . To our knowledge , there were no such
consultatio ns with othe r acco unta nts.
Other Audit Fin dings or Issues
We ge nerally discuss a variety of matters, includ ing the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards , with management each year prior to retention as the Huntingdon Area School
District's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retent ion.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
(CONTINUED)

Other Matters
We applied certain limited procedures to Managemen t's Discussion and Analysis, Defined Benefit
Post-Emp loyment Health Plan, Defined Benefit Pension Plan Information related to the Pennsylvania
Public School Employees' Retiremen t System (PSERS), and Schedu le of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual, which are required supplementary information
(RSI) that suppleme nts the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistenc y with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statemen ts. We did not audit the RSI
and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.
Restriction on Use
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the
Huntingdon Area School District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
tha n these specified parties.

Altoona, Pennsyl va nia
Nov ember 10, 2015
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COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
(CONTINUED)

SCHEDULE OF CORRECTED FINANCIAL MISSTATEMENTS

Credit

None

SCHEDULE OF UNCORRECTED FINANCIAL STATEMENT MISSTATEMENTS

Credit

None
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